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For over 44 years, HKPC remains the preferred
partner of the industry and will strive to create
prosperity for Hong Kong.
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In exchange with Dr Elizabeth Shing, Chairman of the Finance Committee (1st from left), Mr Albert Au, Chairman of the
Staffing Committee (2nd from left) and Mr Victor Ng, Chairman of the Audit Committee (1st from right).
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Over the past 44 years, the Hong Kong
Productivity Council (HKPC) has moved
with times to meet the changing needs
of our industry and help our SMEs
bridge the skills and technology gap for
global competitiveness. We have always
been a trusted partner of the industry

in its quest for productivity excellence.
This partnership has continued to make
distinctive contributions to the prosperity
of Hong Kong.

Going back to the 60s in the last century,
HKPC was set up by statute with an

aim to support the development of

the then-nascent local manufacturing
industry. Our primary focus then was

the provision of training to nurture a new
generation of SME manufacturers. In

the 70s, we encouraged the transition

of the local industry to the high
value-added manufacturing through
technology transfer. With the relocation
of manufacturing operations to the

Pearl River Delta (PRD) in the 80s, we
promoted the adoption of advanced
manufacturing technologies and
management systems to enterprises to
facilitate their cross-boundary operations.

As the 90s marked a new era of
economic development of Hong Kong,
we strengthened our support for industry
in the aspects of innovation, technology
upgrading and compliance with
international management standards.

For the past decade in the 21st
century, Hong Kong industry has
been confronted with challenges of

rising production costs in the PRD
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region and the pressing need to
reduce carbon footprint in response to
global climate change and tightening
environmental regulations. At the
same time, the increasingly close
economic ties between Hong Kong
and the Mainland have created new
market opportunities for the local
industry.

Meanwhile, we have renewed our
strategy, realigned our services

and expanded our support network
on the Mainland to help industry
capture these new opportunities and
overcome the challenges to climb up
the value chain.

We have stepped up our support

in a range of areas especially in the
development of industry with high
growth potential such as automotive
parts and accessory systems,
culminating in the hosting of the
Automotive Parts and Accessory
Systems R&D Centre in 2006. To date,
many of the research projects have
started to bear fruit with significant
success cases of commercialization
that will propel Hong Kong
manufacturers into the supply chain of

Mainland automobile industry.

In 2008, we initiated the TURN
programme as a one-stop support
platform to help Hong Kong
enterprises transform and upgrade
their modes of business in response
to the adjustments in the Mainland’s
policies toward the processing trade.
The TURN programme established

a feasible collaboration model for
pooling the resources of Hong Kong
industry support organizations and
the government authorities, with more
than 120 strategic partners.

To date, numerous industrial
upgrading programmes have been
rolled out in Dongguan, Zhuhai,
Huizhou and other PRD cities, by
which various participating enterprises
benefited from on-site assessment or
improvement programme under the

funding schemes.
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Rolled out “TURN” platform in
Huizhou to assist enterprises
in industrial upgrading.

At the same time, the five-year
Cleaner Production Partnership
Programme launched in April 2008
has become one of the largest
programmes to promote cleaner
production practices. By now, the
programme has completed its third
year of operation, under which more
than 1,100 projects have been
approved. Apart from helping Hong
Kong manufacturers with sharpening
their competitive edges through
savings in energy and material costs,
we also provided environmental
technology providers with business
opportunities under the programme.
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HKPC forms the Hong Kong
Industry Network Clusters
(HK-INC) to foster even
closer strategic partnerships
with different industry
sectors.
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In retrospect, our impartiality,
professionalism, multi-disciplinary
competences and cross-industry
network have all been instrumental
for HKPC to build up various support
platforms and develop foundation
technologies. Individual enterprises
as well as the overall industry benefit

from these all.

Forging ahead into its 45th
anniversary, HKPC will endeavor to
remain as the preferred partner of the
industry by scaling up our support
platform to benefit the overall industry.
We will strive to create values for
SMEs through the introduction and
transfer of innovative technologies
and novel ideas. We will keep on
sharpening our core competencies in
technology transfer application as well
as in testing and certification. Last
but not the least, we will expand our
strategic partnerships with industry
stakeholders so as to provide timely
services for our industry.

| am confident that our focused
efforts will help steer the industry
towards a greener and higher value-
added trail. | am especially glad that

we have appointed Mrs Agnes Mak
as our new Executive Director. Her
track record as a senior management
executive in both business and public
organizations and her extensive
experience in public and community
services would be most helpful in
furthering the objectives of HKPC.

| also wish to thank all Members and
staff of the Council for their support,
commitment and dedication in the

past year.

Clement Chen, BBS, JP
Chairman

B L T =R EG G E SRR ERT

Promoting Corporate Social Responsibility with one
heart.
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The Hong Kong Productivity
Council (HKPC) was established
by statute to promote increased
productivity of industry in Hong
Kong and encourage the more
efficient utilization of resources.

1971/72
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Established the Low Cost
Automation Unit to offset
shortage of skilled labour in
Hong Kong.

1977/78

PIEFERISA - S
RERIE SRR R RS
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Established the Electronics
Services Unit to facilitate
technology transfer of
microprocessor technology
and the development of
microprocessor equipment.

1980

RIBEFE - FREERE
REFRBEREANTIRG

Set up the first
environmental laboratory
in Hong Kong to provide
environmental analysis
services to industry.

1980 XKt 5|2 R
i  Developed
Hong Kong’s first heat
treatment technology.
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1988 1991
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The Surface Mount HKPC pioneered
Technology (SMT) Lab was 1ISO 9000

set up to enable Hong Kong consultancy
manufacturers to break into services in

the components market for Hong Kong.

miniaturized devices.

1991/92 A7 ) KERL
F3 ° Grand opening of the

HKPC Building.

1995-97 £ TRERAEMFE PO - EHREF
BAL > BEREEREPL - BEEBHREREHO
Established the Rapid Prototyping Technology
Centre, the Electromagnetic Compatibility (EMC)
Centre, the Watch and Clock Technology Centre,
and the Jewellery Industry Technology Centre.

1995

EENRREDMRPREH
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HKPC was among the first
to provide ISO 14000 EMS
consultancy services in Asia.

2008

HOTRBRFN EREENKMHTE]
ARERE2EXER=ZANEE THRA
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Carry out a five-year Cleaner
Production Partnership Programme
to provide full-fledged technical support
to Hong Kong-owned factories in the
PRD region to adopt Cleaner Production
technologies and processes

2007 SR HRA
3 [FRBEDEM | - HKPC
and Shenzhen Government
jointly established SZ-HK
Productivity Foundation.

f

-
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2008 it
[ FrE—hiE |
(TURN) T3

2001 THE+=EHRE

SRAHERTT © Organized the
12th World Productivity
Congress for the first time in

Hong Kong and Beijing. Centre (HKCERT).

2003 £k At = EHTE AR EED(EMNFEAER
AT EEH(RR)ZBAGRITAREEH(RINZAE
AT - BIK=AEBRERMGRE ERS - R T
EmIEEER T2 - Established three wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Productivity (Guangzhou) Consulting Co.,
Ltd., Productivity (Dongguan) Consulting Co., Ltd.
and the Productivity (Shenzhen) Consulting Co., Ltd.
to provide integrated support services for Hong Kong
companies and industrialists in the Pearl River Delta.

2001 R EEBMEARRESHHE
BORE BREEEME di AEEKERTERNDER
BJ517) ° Established the Hong
Kong Computer Emergency
Response Team Co-ordination

( w f w “Transform, upgrade and Relocate for a new horizon” helping different
industries to undergo business transformation and upgrading.
2009 *E ) BERETIH
&S E B A L
\_ J L _J HFHAREEA o Collaborated

BRI R E T AR AR - FEI5EER R EEERRTS © Launched

the one-stop support and service platform TURN — an acronym for

with Dongguan Government
to support Hong Kong
manufacturers in Dongguan to

undergo industrial upgrading i ‘
and business transformation.

RIRBFE &

.

2005/06 EFEESRITTRE BN EAN [ )R8
ESRUFEERO | ETTIHERNFE TS SRS
R 1L © Appointed by HKSAR Government
to host the Automotive Parts and Accessory
Systems R&D Centre to undertake market-led
R&D programmes and commercialize the results.
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BEEKEES
Staffing Committee

Z£fE Chairman

/N %, BBS, JP Dr Elizabeth Shing Shiu-ching, BBS, JP

ZEEME Members
£2EE MH Mr Choi Kam-wah, MH

B I Dr Fan Cheuk-hung

RAEH, Mr Leung Yam-shing

BEK Mr Andrew Mak Yip-shing

SER Prof Helen Meng Mei-ling

EIKFE, MH Mr Poon Siu-ping, MH

B Ms Marilyn Tang Yin-lee

B Mr Davey Chung

HEEE, MH, JP Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee, MH, JP

EBBREES

Business Development Committee

=& Chairman

fR$E{—, BBS, JP Mr Clement Chen Cheng-jen, BBS, JP
ZEE K& Members

PR VEE

EP37HE, MH, JP
ZPHREE, MH, JP
EES, JP
BARBRIL, UP

5 iRt

MR

EHEE, MH, JP

Dr Cliff Chan Chok-ki

Ir Daniel Cheng Man-chung, MH, JP
Mr Jimmy Kwok Chun-wah, MH, JP
Mr Lo Foo-cheung, JP

Mrs Katherine Ngan Ng Yu-ying, JP
Mr Jack Yeung Chung-kit

Mr Davey Chung

Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee, MH, JP
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The Staffing Committee approves the appointment of
General Managers. The Committee monitors the staffing
situation and recommends changes to the Council where
appropriate. It advises the Council on human resources
development policies. The Committee also monitors HKPC' s
general terms and conditions of service, to ensure that these
are adequate to recruit and retain competent staff, and
recommends changes to the Council where necessary. The
Committee provides a channel between the Council and staff
for the communication of grievances about general terms
and conditions of service, in situations where they cannot be
resolved by consultation.

EBERZECARAEEARMBRENRE ZREF
A& BUFEUVBHRSE  URMEBEESHEEHER -
ZEZBEgRHAEBBR  SFRNREEBEHED IR
RAFTNERERES  EEBEENRETEELFAHN
REOAE MEEFERLENRNERERRERER

The Business Development Committee monitors

the performance of HKPC ' s subsidiary companies,
recommends the appointment of Chairmen, endorses
annual budgets, and identifies subvention implications
for the approval of the Council. The Committee reviews
business activities, the Services Audit Statement
annually, explores new business opportunities, and
advises the Council on the business development

of HKPC in relation to HKPC' s role in the changing

industrial environment.
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MBEES

Finance Committee

F & Chairman
hAR Mr Victor Ng Chi-keung

ZE 2/ 8 Members

FRIE{—, BBS, JP Mr Clement Chen Cheng-jen, BBS, JP

B e 1 Dr Fan Cheuk-hung
C YN Dr David Ng Tai-chiu

PR, JP Mrs Helen Chan, JP
B R Mr Davey Chung
ZEEE, MH, JP Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee, MH, JP

FHEAE

Audit Committee

=& Chairman

=12 Mr Albert Au Siu-cheung

ZE 2K 8 Members

£EE MH Mr Choi Kam-wah, MH
ZMREE, MH, JP Mr Jimmy Kwok Chun-wah, MH, JP
R Mr Andrew Mak Yip-shing

AX/VE, BBS, JP
T4, JP
EEEE, MH, JP

Dr Elizabeth Shing Shiu-ching, BBS, JP
Miss Janet Wong Wing-chen, JP
Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee, MH, JP

MBEZESRREBEARNMBRE BRESHERR
2 ZESEMARAMRE KEZ2EE BETEETER
RBERBRERRLTRNES ZESRIKEFEFSEL

REO=FRIEFE  —FUBRREE - FEFEIREE - KU
NREERXEENREAD - ZESWHARNMBBERE M
HBARBEAVBEENEEREEGRIER -

The Finance Committee monitors the financial performance
of HKPC and ensures that funds made available are

properly accounted for. The Committee approves changes
to HKPC' s policies and practices relating to procurement,
building management, fixed asset management and charging
levels of HKPC' s services. The Committee recommends
HKPC' s three-year strategic plan, three-year forecast, an
annual programme and estimates and the transfer of funds
between major heads of expenditure, for consideration by the
Council. The Committee also advises the Council on matters
relating to HKPC s financial policies and matters that have a
significant financial impact on HKPC.

BEEEENREBNENZES  AEAEVBHRSE AR
BE - NBEE  ZBENRERERE - ARERARE
RETHETERIREES - BAXBNHEEERK

FoBMZBQWRIESTSRE  BEETHEANNEMAE
BERATHENHGSE - BETARAETZESEIFER
EAERITETR -

The Audit Committee is established to monitor and make
recommendations to enhance HKPC' s healthy corporate
governance in financial reporting, risk management, internal
control, appointment and performance of the external
auditor, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
The Committee is authorized by the Council to investigate
any activity and resolve any disagreement within its

scope of duties. Staff members can directly report to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee on cases of malpractice

or irregularities.
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| took the helm at HKPC in November 2010 to steer
this industry support organization after a series of
internal reforms conducted in the past few years to
build a more robust organization for addressing the
changing needs of the industry. , ,

14
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| am no stranger to this organization.
My association with the Council dated
back to 2003 when | served as a
Council Member until 2008. | was
extensively involved in the human
resources management reform of the
Council during my chairmanship of
HKPC's Staffing Committee from 2006
to 2008.

What have impressed me most are our
innovative solutions, our impartiality, our

professionalism and our exceptionally

multi-disciplinary competencies
spanning the entire value chain. All
these have made us one of the most
trusted partners of the industry, trade
associations and small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) in their quest for
enhanced competitiveness for the past
44 years.

As soon as | was on board, my

priority was to review and map out our
strategy to ensure that our services
remain relevant with particular focus

on helping our industry capture the
business opportunities and meet the
challenges of the Twelfth Five Year
Plan, which places far greater emphasis
on boosting the domestic demand,
sustainable development as well as

industrial upgrading.

Efforts will also be dedicated to refresh
our own brand such that our services
shall be made known to a wider group
of stakeholders, particularly the next-
generation industrialists who are facing
the challenges arising from business
transition.

In light of the new economic
landscape, we have thus formulated
a strategy framework to focus our
services on and promote our mission
to the stakeholders. In this regard,
we will step up our support to the
industry through scaling up our
support platforms. In the meantime,
we will strive to sharpen our core
competencies and develop strategic
partnership with a view to creating
value for SMEs.
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Scaling up platforms
Although consulting services for
individual enterprises form an integral
part of our portfolio of industry
support services, the number of
enterprises which benefited from such
services remains limited. With the
establishment of support platforms
which pool resources from the public
and private sectors, we can now
effectively facilitate the upgrading of
various industry sectors; promote
the growth of emerging industries
and serve as a coordination centre to
address the public concerns such as
information security.

Citing the TURN programme as an
example, which was launched in
2008 through the support of HKSAR
Government, we have successfully
replicated this platform in the

past few years in a number of key
industrial towns and cities in the
PRD, aiming to provide more direct
and effective support to enterprises
aspiring for business enhancement
and transformation. Through the
combination of our technical knowhow
with the financial resources of the
Mainland Government, enterprises
are given the much needed

support to map out their business
upgrading strategy and improvement
programmes.

In 2009, HKPC and the Dongguan
Bureau of Foreign Trade and Economic
Cooperation jointly set up a DG-TURN
platform, which has become one of the
major platforms in the PRD.

A notable development of the DG-
TURN during the year was the
collaboration with the Hong Kong
Design Centre, the Automotive Parts
and Accessory Systems R&D Centre
and the Hong Kong Research Institute
of Textile and Apparel. Under the
DG-TURN, the support services to
manufacturers were scaled up. The
R&D results of the partners will also be
introduced to help enterprises develop
innovative products and technologies

for high value-adding production.

The government-funded five-year
Cleaner Production Partnership
Programme (CPPP), implemented by
HKPC, is another successful platform
through which government authorities as
well as environmental technology service
providers in Hong Kong and Guangdong
collaborated to promote cleaner
production and low carbon practices to
manufacturers in the PRD. More than
100 factories, sourcing enterprises and
registered environmental technology
service providers were awarded the
commendation in the Hong Kong-
Guangdong Cleaner Production Partners
Recognition Scheme in the year.
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The views collated in

the Hong Kong Industry
Network Clusters (HKPC-
INC) could help HKPC
refine its services to
cater for the needs of

the industry.
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13 B 73 & BEAR 1T 3% 2 B8 B X B H) R
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AR BREIEIERE - AETH
FE2014F3RHER -

BB BE D
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R - WA AI A RITHIBE S - AR
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Besides, we have also established
other platforms to fuel the growth of
emerging industries. For the creative
industries, we have jointly developed
the “Hong Kong Comics” App with
the Hong Kong Comics & Animation
Federation Limited to promote Hong
Kong comics to a wider audience
both locally and overseas. More than
50,000 readers from 55 countries and
regions have downloaded the App

since its launch in January 2011.

The solid state lighting industry is
another area with market potential due
to the rising demand for green lighting.
Hong Kong Solid State Lighting Industry
Consortium (HKSSLIC) was set up with
the help of HKPC to address the issues
of standards, testing, certification and
technology application.

The Hong Kong Computer Emergency
Response Team Coordination Centre
(HKCERT), administered by HKPC,
celebrated its 10th anniversary

in February 2011. The HKCERT
demonstrated well the unique role
played by HKPC in providing a
platform to address issues vital to the
development of Hong Kong’s industry

and economy.

HKCERT has acted as the centre for
coordination of computer security
incidents for local enterprises and
internet users. During the year,
HKCERT was re-elected as Chair of

the Asia Pacific Computer Emergency
Response Teams (APCERT), and
advised on and participated in regional

security drill exercises during the year.

Creating Value for SMEs
SMEs are an important pillar of our
economy and HKPC is committed to
supporting SMEs to create and deliver
higher value-added products and

services.

Lacking their own brands, many

Hong Kong SMEs have limited clues
on how to kickstart their domestic
sales business. HKPC launched new
initiatives during the year to help SMEs
tap the burgeoning Mainland market.

HKPC and the Federation of Hong
Kong Footwear launched the “Shoe
Fountain” project in the year to help
small and medium shoe manufacturers
make use of creative designs to
sharpen their competitive edges. With
the facilitation of HKPC, designers
paired up with manufacturers and
produced creative shoe products
based on award-winning designs.

To assist Hong Kong SMEs to make
headway in tapping the blossoming
domestic market on the Mainland,
the Hong Kong Association of
International Co-operation of Small
& Medium Enterprises (ISME) and
HKPC jointly published a practical

guidebook on domestic sales in

China with the support of the SME
Development Fund of the Trade and
Industry Department. The guidebook,
which featured reference case studies
of six major industries, has laid down
a roadmap for SMEs in exploring the
domestic market.

Products making use of the Far
Infrared (FIR) technology are becoming
mature and have been a hit in Japan
and western countries. With the
support of the SME Development
Fund, HKPC implemented a FIR
support programme for the Hong
Kong Far Infrared Rays Association
Limited (HKFIRA). Under the
programme, HKPC provides SMEs
with local FIR testing facilities and
services with an aim to help them
reduce cost and the lead time in the

FIR product development cycle.

To facilitate local SMEs to overcome
the barriers of entering the global
high-reliability electronics market,
with funding support from the SME
Development Fund, the Reliability
Testing Centre of HKPC launched

a 12-heating-zone reflow soldering
simulation system. With this system,
the local PCB industry is able to meet
the stringent test requirements of
multi-national companies. The service
will be offered free of charge to local
SMEs on a preferential basis until
March 2014.
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BITEERIIRE - [ 8 T AH RIS R IR R AT
B IWERMFIEER - J5% B S r A
Host Director’s Briefing to update staff and gauge their

views on latest development in corporate strategies and
policies with a view to strengthen communication.

RBBN AU E F RS A RIS Al 58
MEFEMMSNER KRTSEEE
g12R IR R BRE RGN - Al
FMHRAHPOBHEL T =R EE8
ARG UREFO MRS
(HALT) A= pnaRpE 62 (HASS) Al
ARG BEERHEERENERRE
pliSari

BUEEHS 2011410 AR - 2EERAFH
EhiiFRA (EMC) Al EAEENS5022 -
A SER KIEIRA E6GHz - MARE
SEBNEMBHRERE AR - &
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AR E - R R A EER2FAEE
EFOTERNE K - BEEBHFRARIES
DIRFHAIEEE S - BRI AR MR
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R RN
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TEERRE X EF B R4 - [HKPCS
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WTERAUREZREENER - 1M
BEARITREY B ETNRIINARE -

EARFEE  [HKPCERBIE | & XS T
SiAe TERRE AIBEX  EXR
¥ BB ARBEEAK-

AR BRI R R T RE K
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ERRPDEREENEIEREE - BF
Hife - BRI

& BROLBHZRRAEFBRBE—FR
2HERERENZE - BEABEILEA
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BHERE, MH, JP
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Sharpening Core
Competencies

Throughout our history, HKPC has
been a pioneer in many industry
sectors. We will continue to develop
and introduce advanced technologies
to local industry. By continuously
investing in new facilities and
upgrading our existing facilities,

we will be able to acquire new
competencies to serve the diverse
needs of our industry.

To assist local electronics practitioners
to overcome the barriers of entering
the global high-reliability electronics
market, apart from acquiring the high
repeatability reflow soldering system
with 12 heating zones, the Reliability
Testing Centre also introduced a
Combined Climatic Vibration Test
System and a new HALT (Highly
Accelerated Life Test) and HASS
(Highly Accelerated Stress Screening)
Testing System to help manufacturers
shorten verification time for new
product designs.

With effect from October 2011, the
European Union (EU) will fully adopt

a new EMC test standard EN55022
with the testing frequency significantly
increased to 6GHz which is generally
applicable to all modern IT equipment.
In view of this, HKPC is setting up

a new EMC chamber to meet the

new demands arising from the new

testing standards and from the local
industries. With the expanded testing
capabilities of the EMC centre, we can
better support the local testing and
certification industry in light of the new
development.

Developing Strategic
Partnership

One of HKPC's strengths is our solid
and extensive ties with the industry.
The Hong Kong Industry Network
Clusters (HK-INC) is one of our new
channels to gauge the views of the
local industry on issues relevant to their
long-term developments so as to foster
even closer strategic partnerships with
different industry sectors.

During the year, four consultation

forums were held on topics relating to
the digital creative industry, watch and
clock industry, ICT industry as well as
business inheritance and sustainability.

We also entered into strategic
partnerships with renowned
international organizations to
introduce a series of Greenhouse Gas
(GHG) training programmes based

on ISO 14064 standards as well as
specialist aviation safety training in
Hong Kong.

HKPC also joined hands with the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service
and five other strategic partners

to establish the CSR Institute for
the promotion of corporate social
responsibility.

In this Annual Report, you will see
more copious endeavors we have
dedicated throughout the year. With
our refined business strategy in
place, we are confident that we will
continue to be the trusted partner
of Hong Kong industry and our
SMEs, energizing them with new
capabilities to keep in step with the
ever-changing business environment
and transforming productivity into
prosperity.

Last but not the least, | would like

to extend my gratitude to all staff
members for their dedication and
support that had contributed to our
strong financial results last year.

Our operating income amounted to
$314.9 million, much exceeding our
original expectation and representing
a formidable increase of about 11.8%
over that of 2009/10. Overall, we also
achieved a surplus of $17.9 million in
2010/11. HKPC, being a not-for-profit
organization, will continue to use our
resources effectively for the good of
the industry.

Agnes Mak, MH, JP
Executive Director

21



FENY
The Year in Pictures

EBEENEER HKPC | %38 Annual Report 2010-2011

PMA 2010 APRIL

CHEH [EBCERARGE] WM
EfER N [REHEETER] -

Launched the “Hong Kong
Corporate Citizenship Program”
and published first Hong Kong CSR
Index for SMEs.

22 A A 2010 MAY

A SEERBEEGeAN [BZR] A YT EEREEXEBEN [ FRAR
BRSO A F B RS - BRIREEXRE] REEEN RR LE

ERRIFIKEEIE R4 ©
Organized the Shoe Fountain project

with the Federation of Hong Kong First relocation site for jewellery
Footwear to nurture aspiring design industry in Shenzhen commissioned
talents. HKPC to design and build a centralized

wastewater treatment solution.

A HIRCEEFRER) FF - BEYER

Published the “Star Company Profile”
featuring successful experience of
business transformation of local
enterprises.

7vA 2010 JUNE

R NERERE ] BERE - &L
BETIERE  BRRERTTEE

M3k o

Introduced the “Cool Kitchen”
practices to enhance the working
environment and operating
efficiency of catering operations.
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+£A 2010 JULY

A B DESER] DI bsge  RIERBELEZETERN
HE R BERRM -
Organized the “Wise Business” SME Summit to explore the

economic outlook from a macro perspective and to identify new
opportunities for local enterprises.
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LA 2010 SEP

A T3 [AREXLCD AEHERR] @
BEFERRBETASEREA - HE
BRERABSHBTERM X T8

DEUEES -

Developed the “LCD Configurable
Dashboard” for delivering vast amount of
information to the driver within the limited
display area without distraction.

24

+A 2010 OCT

A RREFBTIRMEBSENBESEE

BEMNEFRE-FINENBBITIRER
A -

Organized a promotion programme on
Bio-medical engineering in Guangzhou
with The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers — Biomedical Division.

A BEBEGHMEEEHAIHEMEE
BRIFREI R A o

Jointly organized the inaugural Hong
Kong International Mobile Film Awards
(HKIMFA) with the Hong Kong Wireless
Technology Industry Association
(WTIA).

A FIE BB RAIMEE mIRAE R
eI - I HE AR A A SRR AR TS
Developed a set of Far Infrared Rays

(FIR) product testing standards and
launched a FIR certification service.

» H#EHISO 500015 25t
2 BESRECERY
BEUHREREBER -

Launched an ISO 50001
Pilot Programme to help
organizations achieve
long-term energy
efficiency improvement.

A [FEEMARZELBAT L] BTE2BBERLORE -

Hong Kong Computer Emergency Response Team Coordination Centre (HKCERT)
conducted a territory-wide drill.
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+—A 2010 NOV

v RPEE[EERECEARE]  REBEBREERTIHRETR
HECELIEE -
Organized the inaugural “Hong Kong Corporate Citizenship Program
- Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizen Award”.

A EHHARRBEBEBT/NEXERIAHEH S REHN (PEA

Jointly published “The Practical Guidebook for Smart Domestic Sales in China” with the Hong Kong Association of International Co-operation of

Small & Medium Enterprises.

HERE A B ERE R KR
FIERE CRIFT A E A
BERBTIEBRAMRAE) -

Drafted the Guangdong
Province “Innovation-

Knowledge Enterprise A AREBVBARBABHEREETHEER A EFSARREEHHNCEBAR DHRER —
Intellectual Propert e = .

ety f e REMIESEAFAREERE] -
Management Practice” with
Guangdong Intellectual HKPC and IBM unveiled the HKPC-IBM HKPC, Dongguan Daily and Dongguan Bureau
Property Office. Education Cloud Pilot application. of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation co-

> ZEEHNERREENRBE -

Appointed Mrs Agnes Mak as
HKPC'’s Executive Director.

BB ) - B N HAEE X -

organized a summit to introduce the DG-TURN
support programme.
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+=H 2010 DEC

CHBELEBERRR  EENR BEIERES R-ATEHBIN
HKETARBRERSEM [ EAREAURNE] -

Seminar on “Upgrading and Business Transformation for Charting

New Business” was jointly organized in Zhuhai by the Commerce and
Economic Development Bureau of the HKSAR Government, HKPC,
the Federation of Hong Kong Industry, the PRD Council and Dongguan
Bureau of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation.

26

CER[EBEREBFRELERM
ARTSEAL | AESE - ARAME—
LB BHE -

A BHEBREREHA S - NF45HE
TRESEW | THRERE« LR E
] EE

A SUESE BB A 28 X
EHERREAN [EEEREERE
2EHE -

HKPC enlisted as
Guangdong Province
cleaner production
technical service provider,
the only organization from
Hong Kong.

Partnered with the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong
Kong to set up a game booth in the
45th HK Brands and Products Expo to
promote corporate social responsibility.

HKPC and the Hong Kong Federation of
Restaurant and Related Trades launched
the first “Quality Restaurant Environmental
Management Scheme”.

=A 2011 MARCH

A BASAIEeRICKBEE 8] + &) A ARMESFHNEDFLESTIRAR A ETPIMRY [ XA RERHERY

fesie) -

Organized the Cross Industry Matching
Showcase with the Innovative
Entrepreneur Association (IEA).

[faceTeeniT®) ] & [PI&&TEl] -

Launched two anti-drug support
projects, “Let’s Face It” and “DIAMOND
— DIAlogue-MObile-No Drugs” to keep
young people away from drugs.

Fal RIPTTEREXRBELE
RETT R R TR

Established a “TURN” programme

in Jiangmen to provide professional
assessment to Hong Kong-based
enterprises and pilot industries in the city.
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—A 2011 JAN

> BEEHEMEFHE [FE2E ] ER
B HEEEEEEEAIE -

Developed the “Hong Kong Comics”
App in collaboration with Hong Kong
Comics & Animation Federation Limited
to promote Hong Kong comics.

A [HKPCERIE | BITERREAE - K < RE—EBERNAE
AR ERREBEHEEROBAE - HNERER [FERREERG] -

VAT B 4B SRR A HR R B ©
Held the 5th “Hong Kong Industry

Network Clusters” (HK-INC) consultation Designed a free web-based carbon
session to explore roadmap for business emission calculator, the CGCC-Carbon
inheritance and sustainability. Management Tool to help enterprises, i

especially SMEs, assess and reduce their
carbon footprint.

—H 2011 FEB =A 2011 MARCH

Y EBMEIARR [FE—uhE ] RETFE
BENE B T AR EERL -

Rolled out “TURN” platform in Huizhou to
assist enterprises in industrial upgrading.

A FRRFFL - BB VET RT3
AL AIE B A4 S IR AT B AR LA [HE
SR ERETHRBEV AR B ) AR -

Hong Kong Design Centre, Automotive
Parts and Accessory Systems R&D Centre
and the Hong Kong Research Institute of
Textile and Apparel joined the “DG-TURN”
programme as strategic partners.

A BEEEBTA RS EZEFITER © Joined hands with Fujian authority to step up industrial upgrading.









E#4EENRER HKPC | 4 Annual Report 2010-2011

SENRAZOEXATE  BEZENIXXIEED  YER=ZATBRFNEY
T AREGBHAEBTIR  AEHRPNEE  BHARERNI K  RRHEE -

Leveraging our comprehensive industry support services and the funding support
of the municipal governments across the PRD, HKPC has taken proactive actions
to assist the local industry players, particularly small and medium enterprises
(SMEs), to meet the challenges arising from their business transformation and
enhancement.

To facilitate the business enhancement
and transformation of Hong Kong
manufacturers with business in
Dongguan, HKPC joined hands with

BT TIEE R AN RS TR . the Dongguan Bureau of Foreign

Trade and Economic Cooperation to
SEREMHINE HICEAERAIE R .
RER=DEIEAEHSIERA LR R launch the DG-TURN programme in
ISR N P
20005 it [MESBERRFAMBAEAD 5009, With the financial support of the

T2l -BRTESEREABNHNERIN Dongguan authority,
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T R £ 7 BB ST R 2 0 FH AR EEZ K458 o
Hong Kong manufacturers and HKPC experts shared
the successful experience of business upgrading in
Dongguan.

HEENRNERER I A2 S RRE
RHBRHENR SR - MAEEEND
RE B T]ITIEIRR

B2 ML B ENEERT
[EFRERNBRET  RATHNS
1B o INRIPUDESE [BE —K] £
EZRLTEHNREER  BBRAER
FAgZH 1]

participants can participate in
professional assessments and
consultancy services from HKPC’s
consultants in relation to their
business improvement, and also
collaborate with HKPC on their
improvement projects.

“We are no longer alone in our quest
for business transformation and
enhancement. If we kept relying on
low-end products, we would definitely
be out-competed!” said a participant
of the on-site assessment programme
in the project.

BEN R
The Sky’s the Limit

ZIRH BB ERAIAS 910052 F8 % -

The screws manufacturer adopts the AS 9100

management system.

SERZEFREBIE BN —
RIBHBZENTROER - RO
EENBER/ANFEER
2 R ERAS 9100/ % E
EEEERATENTIE  NE
A= ERTERME TETH
g -

The participant of the DG-TURN
programme, a manufacturer of
screws and fasteners, decided
to act on the recommendations
of HKPC consultants and

adopt the AS 9100 quality
management system for aviation
products in order to pave the
way for its business expansion
into the automotive and aviation

parts industry.
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Marks of

Excellence

M EZBELCEARBEREFHE ] HHEP-—RK

BAMERER  BETLEEIRERMUSHEREER
A WIFIREERE - UBLLLAANEREENES
EEEER - ZQAABEART KA ENEEANR
REFEEARERMKME -

One of the leading stone materials manufacturers
in Asia also participated in the DG-TURN
programme and invited HKPC to provide training
and consulting services on the “Performance
Excellence Model” with an aim to optimize

the company’s performance management and
facilitate the integration of different management
systems. The executive vice president of the
company said the main focus of the project

was to forge the right direction for business
enhancement and transformation.
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BB KRG ZHTHIRE T AIAT ETE 5 2/ B AR X A FT IR AL E

The red granite base of the famous Golden Bauhinia statue is the product

of this stone materials manufacturer.

HEER
Laying Solid Foundation

AN - ZARELEEERETRFE
ERNFEBET BT TONER
& BIHRAREEBTLRE - i
MWENRSER - 15K BZ IR
TEPHAMH  EMREMHRNTEE
45 o

% RACAREREN - fhil - P
W N ORI RERINE - A [T
E-uR | BB TEXEARTA -
N BT EEE TR = AR
ENBRAFRREUSERE -

ERSANKE - BBIS0RE LR RE
BYEHE] - &R 4040% 0 b 3 B AT
e

Besides, in contending for the
Dongguan Municipal Government
Quality Award, the manufacturer
received recommendations from
assessors on further improvement
measures, in response to which it
thoroughly reviewed the operation of
its systems. As a reward for its efforts,
the manufacturer won the Award out
of 15 other contestants.

To date, a number of industrial
upgrading platforms have been
successfully established in
collaboration with the governments
of Guangzhou, Foshan, Zhongshan,
Huizhou, Shenzhen, Dongguan and
Zhuhai. Meanwhile, discussions with
the authorities of other places in
the PRD about the implementation
of similar collaboration projects are
underway.
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[+T-HZRE | BRAURATHEEE - A > FOPFPNENREBFRZ ARME
HRNAIRRAEEBRSRFER - Bt - EEHREBE—FHH TH
B HB IR ERE  MAREERNAETES

The Twelfth Five-Year Plan emphasizes a domestic demand-driven economy.

However, many of the small and medium-sized OEMs, lacking their own
brands, do not have a clue on how to expand their business into the
domestic market. As such, HKPC launched new initiatives during the year to
help SMEs seize opportunities in the burgeoning Mainland market.

Creativity
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RIERREFT AT KB B RETAIANELE
B hRAEANTS  RBEESR
BlmiE  EENRNEBEXESHEE
E—FHELT [BZR]E -

EIEBERRLE] P - 12U &R
ANEN2BERBEBEXESHE TR
BiY - KEAIERER - EBRE
KRE MIEBEERHEE]| PR
o WARRBRAFF o LI EFITT
AR EM R ERMFBOHEY T
D ERH -

To nurture design talents and
establish ties between designers
and manufacturers for the
development of more original
products for the huge Mainland
market, HKPC and the Federation
of Hong Kong Footwear introduced
the “Shoe Fountain” project during
the year.

Twelve finalists of the Hong Kong
Footwear Design Competition
cooperated with 10 manufacturers
to come up with new designs,
which were well-received by trade
buyers in various international
fashion shows such as the fashion
extravaganza, “World Boutique
Hong Kong”. These new designs
were also exhibited in the fashion
expos in Beijing and Guangzhou
as well as the shopping centres in
Hong Kong.




E#4EENRER HKPC | 4 Annual Report 2010-2011

EH TS - TR N)DDEEATF o
Many SMEs have no clue how to start their domestic
sales business.

RAhBEERNEBEBRNENERE &
AR NEEBRRZR S RAEE N BB
BHRET(PTERHEERLE) 5§58
FBREERNZE -

(W) BRMEERIN - FANBER
KEEH - RAER  REER - ik
mERMINTAKRITEEEREERA
HTISEBRER - ARKIINAEE
ERG - RMH EEASHEIELEITEM
RENERTAER RETERANE
MISNE RN RRFBW REXES -

bR [E Bk B e s
B > EER - X B HTEE
SB[ CEBFRTERES | BRE
B NAE

B [EAR /TR HE# MR
2ERE | REFBMBENETH [H
BRHEERD Zmig] -

To assist Hong Kong SMEs to make
headway in tapping the blossoming
domestic market, the Hong Kong
Association of International Co-
operation of Small and Medium
Enterprises (ISME) and HKPC jointly
published “The Practical Guidebook
for Smart Domestic Sales in China”
(the Guidebook), which is a useful
reference for enterprises.

Featuring the case studies of six major
industries, namely watches and clocks,
jewellery, domestic appliances, apparel
and footwear, cosmetics and food
processing, the Guidebook

outlined the keys to success and




E#4EENRER HKPC | 4 Annual Report 2010-2011

management strategies in exploring

the market in Guangdong province. As
the first reference book tailor-made for

these sectors, the Guidebook serves
as a roadmap for SMEs to open up
the domestic market.

The publication of this Guidebook is
a key part of a programme funded
by the SME Development Fund of
the Trade and Industry Department,
the objective of which is to enhance
competitiveness of SMEs and to
provide support to facilitate their
entering the Mainland market. The
programme also comprises an SME
survey and several experience-
sharing seminars in Hong Kong and
Guangzhou.

[P S &) B EFBNETT [ EAEER S

Fwig] e

Seminars were organized in Hong Kong and Guangzhou
to share the successful experiences of starting domestic
sales business.
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BARRBERBIEZRBERERNRERZ SN  HEDBEBKERE
RESENER - LENRBEBXEZTREEANER - MUATERBRE
B AR REEARERTSERSIENRE

By providing assurance to overseas buyers on the quality and safety of
products, the Testing and Certification industry has played an important role

in the economic development of Hong Kong. HKPC has actively thrown its
support to the development of this industry in the aspects of human resources,
new testing methods and development schemes, facilities sharing, technical
consultancy and market promotions.

MBS HFRAEIER - /7T %
FEEREMENERMN - £ED
PRt MR RTYS - BB R RER
HHERIBETERET L BEREES
ISO 17025BRERE=RAFTE - /5
TEEIVNHSETAFHKLAE -
BEERET LHREE S TE AR
XEZLVeRZINMARSERMEE
AR ERIRT
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P &
Cupellation Method

B E ETELER Zka
Weigh sample Cupellation Flatten the bead Parting
Q ) & roll into cornet \ )
EDREIRERR %

The demand on the Mainland for
physical gold is growing at an
“explosive” pace. To strengthen Hong
Kong’s presence in the gold market,
HKPC provided technical consultancy
services to CGSE in setting up a gold
fineness testing laboratory under

Standard Test method for determination of gold content

ISO 17025 standard. The laboratory
will provide testing and certification on
999.5 gold products. With this facility
in place, the credibility of the purity

of all gold products traded in CGSE’s
platform will be significantly enhanced.

SIRHEEZH
Chinese Gold & Silver
Exchange Society

BEBFR  2REZEFSRERNE
BRRMEE ST E - F998F9999&
MRS - HEeREBSHHINEIE 2R
ARBEEENMGS  MERBMSZ
H i o

For over a century, The Chinese
Gold & Silver Exchange Society
(CGSE) has operated a trading
platform for the industry and
member firms to trade 99%
fineness 5-tael gold bullions and
999.9% 1-kg gold bullions. The
bullions produced by CGSE-
accredited refineries also circulate
widely in the global market.
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EELrERE

RAKE Gt fEE

Upgrad

BRUCLUSN  EE DR —EXEAMHKEEHERA
BESERE  mEEEREBREHKE - Hf

— XA MEENKEEHRERREHETER
EEIRERAKEEHEEENEEREEERRF
ZV100%E2RNESEMMBEERER

HKPC also lends continuous support to

the local jewellers by assisting them with

the improvement in the precious metal
production, quality controls and recycling
process. HKPC was commissioned by one of
the leading gold and jewellery manufacturers
and chain shops in Hong Kong to upgrade
its jewellery supply chain in order to achieve
100% inspection of its gold products.

BT BB A E A dn B RAZNE ©

HKPC assists local jewellers to upgrade their
quality assurance process.
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Infrared Rays Association

FIR standardiz;
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In line with the FIR testing service, a new certification scheme for compliance

testing of FIR products is now rolled out by HKFIRA. The new certification

scheme is expected to enhance public awareness of FIR technology and pave

the way for the FIR standardization.

by Hong Kong Far

RALNREETIS
Far Infrared Market
Heats Up

REAIMNEREMOEERARBKR - £AXK
MAGTBERAZENM - HEMAGERE
W RBERMINT - g KAESE -
@%EDD AZE REERRET ©
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The far infrared (FIR) technology is
becoming mature, and has been a hit in
Japan and the western countries. There
are wide applications of FIR, ranging
from food processing, imaging, home
appliances and health care to garment
processing.

In light of the lack of FIR testing facilities
in Hong Kong, locally-developed
products are often sent to Japan for
testing. Long lead time and high cost of
the overseas reliability testing process
have hindered the development of the
local FIR industry and products.

With the support of the SME
Development Fund of the Trade

and Industry Department, HKPC
implemented a FIR support programme
for the Hong Kong Far Infrared Rays
Association Limited (HKFIRA). Under
the programme, HKPC provides SMEs
with local FIR testing facilities and
services with an aim to help them
reduce cost and the lead time in the FIR
development cycle. SMEs will therefore
gain an in-depth understanding of the
FIR technology through this support
programme.
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To facilitate local electronics
practitioners to overcome the barriers
of entering the global high-reliability
electronics market, the Reliability
Testing Centre of HKPC, with the
support from the SME Development
Fund of the Trade and Industry
Department, has enhanced its capability
by acquiring a high repeatability reflow
soldering system with 12 heating zones.
With this system, the local PCB industry
is able to meet the stringent printed
circuit board test requirements of multi-

national companies.
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Creative industries are important economic drivers for
Hong Kong which create an added value to Hong Kong'’s
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) of more than $60 billion
annually, representing around 4% of Hong Kong’s GDP.
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manufacturers.

SENR-ERAZERRERENNHEE  2HEBATEXEN
BE LAMBHEREAREBEYHEHETFS -

Thanks to the strong ties with the creative industries, HKPC
has stepped up its efforts to facilitate the growth of this sector
through promoting the industries as well as building a business
collaboration platform for both the creative industries and the

BHELEE
HK Cartoon Figures Land in
Shanghai

[ER#BRFE] N2010F9H4%E16
B DettEe ST - RTEBIE20
fIREEEHEEHESEERXNELE
EXMBIEAER o

BRAPHEEDEEHRE  LENR
REBBBREEXSIZPLAM - LT
BB MBABBM A LH)STH

The Hong Kong Ani-Com Carnival,
which ran from 4 to 16 September
2010, showcased the creativity and
achievements of over 20 member
artists of Hong Kong Comics and
Animation Federation Limited (HKCAF)
and independent artists during the
Shanghai World Expo.

The Carnival was jointly presented by

the HKCAF, HKPC and the Hong Kong
Digital Entertainment Industry Support
Centre, with the support of Cyberport

and the Hong Kong Arts Centre.

[B88) &7 FE | HERTEEEEXIEIEHR

The Hong Kong Ani-Com Carnival showcased the
creativity and achievements of Hong Kong comic artists
in Shanghai.
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[EEBEEFE | LR EBED N AR SRS 30 popular cartoon characters
BIRS EFMFENEE RS -

The Carnival was staged at the AsiaWorld Expo to . . .
enable local audiences to encounter the works of home- 'nC|Ud|ng 3-metre giant sculptures

g el of “McDull”, “Tiger Wong” and
“Cloud” etc. The exhibition
was a huge hit and received
over 500,000 visitors. The
exhibition was then staged in

were exhibited in the Carnival,

Guangzhou and Dongguan
to further promote Hong
Kong’s animation and
comics sector to the
Mainlanders. Finally, the
Carnival was staged

at the AsiaWorld Expo

in November 2010

to bring the cartoon
characters back to

Hong Kong fans.
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Riding on the blossom of smart phones
and mobile communication platforms,
Hong Kong Comics & Animation
Federation Limited and HKPC jointly
developed the “Hong Kong Comics”
App to promote Hong Kong comics

to a wider audience both locally and
overseas through this state-of-the-art

electronic means.

[Z8)8% | ApplrB) At )R E S EEBIR TS

The “Hong Kong Comics” App help local talents enter
the international market.

With the funding support of the
CreateSmart Initiative of the Create
Hong Kong (CreateHK), the “Hong Kong
Comics” App also serves as a new
channel to promote the works of up-
and-coming local comic artists. In the
initial phase, nearly 20 local comics were
selected and are now published via the
App Store. English versions were also
prepared to help local talents enter the
international market. The second phase
of this project was completed in March
2011 with the works of 36 local comic
artists published in the App Store.

More than 50,000 readers from 55

countries and regions have downloaded
the App since its launch in January 2011
with over 32% of readers from overseas.
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[EEZ TEI] + ] BAXACE 551 8] BT
BIEEI¥ERE -
Innovative Entrepreneur Association (IEA) and HKPC

kicked off a project to match-make local creative works
with SMEs.

r&1l+ril

Creative Crossover

RBBEBERNTINERRBES
tE BIBAIXEREENRAMT
[BEXTEI+TEIREHE] -

B0 A B RBAY M FEREEIE
B3 —E = RENEERIFHOETT
MY e FRINERAIER - BRE1E
#e - [EREHe | BEERITHRERT
BIEREAM [AIEEEE] B3Es -

To encourage the cooperation
between the creative industries and
SMEs, the Cross Industry Matching
Showcase was jointly organized by the
Innovative Entrepreneur Association
(IEA) and HKPC as funded by the
CreateSmart Initiative of CreateHK.

Over 60 Hong Kong illustrators and
graphic designers displayed the
best of their original works to
seek potential business
partnerships in the three-
day showcase at the
InnoCentre in Kowloon
Tong.

BEEHAEEH
Mix-and-Match

(B2 | BREEXEIETE
The Showcase provided a platform for cross-
industry partnership.

(e B IBEXTAIL+
M&] BREH SRS 2 B3
HA - RAmREEE AR
FEHAIHBEEXRSFEE - 2
WREARERRAEC(BERXA
fEfESl)  BXRAEEBERSA
((FHPRIESTE

The Showcase was a highlight
of “Showcasing Creative
Works to Inspire Cross Industry
Matching in Commercial
Applications”. The project

also included the publication

of a Cross Industry Mix-and-
Match Roadmap to share the
success experience in such
collaboration.
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The Hong Kong ICT Awards, supported by the Office of the Government

Chief Information Officer (OGCIO) and co-organized by local industry

associations, aim to recognize and promote the outstanding achievements

of local ICT professionals and organizations.

REBICTEHER
Recognizing Excellence in
ICT Applications

SF  RBRFRE2ELE - LR
HBTA0RSEER  BREANME
B E EEER RIS R < [2011F8
Bl boBAR 2] RA10{ELR R A £2
B BEENHRE —EARE - MK
RITEBZBEHUEEPTEL [2FX
5]

HKENRBBRETRBENMERSI - T
NEEREBEOFENER - & ERF
A BORM TR TIERIBHLT

This year, the Awards attracted a
record number of over 740 entries,
demonstrating strong support of both
the industry and the community for
these Awards. The Hong Kong ICT
Awards 2011 comprised 10 categories
with one Grand Award in each
category and an Award of the Year
was selected among the 10 Grand
Award winners.

LETIEE [ BEEM BB HHERL

HKPC was the secretariat of the Hong Kong ICT Awards.

Apart from acting as the
secretariat of the Awards, HKPC
also took up the role of an
assessment secretariat for eight
leading organizers to ensure

the adjudication of all awards to
be conducted in a professional

manner.

KERIE T RISGFER GBS [ EERMRBAFRIE]
#) [RFAXLE ] -

The Central Command System of Marine Police won the
Award of the Year of the Hong Kong ICT Awards.
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Since China has taken
the place of the United
States to be the world’s
largest vehicle market

in 2010, there is now a
keen competition in the
industry for a slice of the
lucrative automotive parts
and after-sales market on
the Mainland.

MOST-150E& 7424 Z 47

MQOST-150 Infotainment System

Advanced Driver Assistant System (ADAS)
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LED Headlamp
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Vehicle Service Operation

Standard

VDA 6.2:2004

FEEBRETBBNTHERRADE RRAITENRBEKERERELR  #IX
ESE R IERBRIBES INIHFT LENREATEBELEREEESHE
HWAERT S S| ABRIIEREREFFREVDA 6.2:2004

The auto repair and beauty services represent another fast growing sector.

To enhance the service quality and professional image of the vehicle repair
and beauty service industry, HKPC teamed up with the Hong Kong Vehicle
Repair Merchants Association and launched a pilot programme to promote the
adoption of the international vehicle service operation standard VDA 6.2:2004
with funding support from the SME Development Fund of the Trade and
Industry Department.
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With this certification, the operators

RANERBRAKE
Gain an Edge

can differentiate themselves from
the roadside shops in terms of the

with VDA 6.2:2004

Certification qualified repairing technologies,

equipment precision level, quality
management system

and regulatory

compliance.

EEENRHRMEET - MRS I
FOFRINFI LG H B E R/ NES] TVDA
6.2:20041F% - BAHTEHEERER
R# 2 - KAEGBERERENEE
1-F K

AR ERRARE - B e Rk
BIEAI L IERMETE - REER
B EEERASRMBICERES
R [BRIEIE | B0 oK -

With the technical support of HKPC,
two Hong Kong SMEs with service
sites in Shenzhen and Shanghai
have successfully obtained the VDA
6.2:2004 certification under this
programme, rendering them the first
Hong Kong-owned vehicle repair and
beauty service operators to have
adopted this international standard.

HITFM AR R REELVDA 6.2:2004 8 R
BB SRR AR EEAEEI0% °

The handbook can help vehicle service operators cut the
set-up cost of VDA 6.2:2004 management system up to
70%.
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The booming civil aviation market on the Mainland with its large jet

production programmes has boosted the demand for aircraft parts

54

£ ) B Baines Simmons Limited & A 14ATEE
LRIZFREE
HKPC collaborates with Baines Simmons Limited to

provide specialist aviation safety training programmes
in Hong Kong.

and components.

BXFAMEFEANTIZERDRHRA
8 FAMEMRESEDT @ £E
NEBRAAXWER A hEFER
FAR B TR8 E R UGB AR B AL R AR B9 BT
BIEH -

HERAFBBERNAFDRRBES
IR EHKAR-2THEM R - R
Mo AR ARSR TR A X AR A

B2 THKAR-2133Z8 4N » E W FHEIEA
METHMHREENDE - KERBB
AS 9100MZEERE EERERIZTER
B TRERBA BRI E TR
JERE - ETEEZEHE [P/ ERRY

To support the local industry players
to enter this high value and high-
tech sector, HKPC has been working
with the local plastics, metals and
electronics industries to embark on a
R&D project on the development of
the first economy class aircraft seat in
Hong Kong, which was funded by the
Innovation and Technology Fund.

An assembly plant has also been
set up on the Mainland by the

consortium of sponsoring companies



PO+ P #R Al S84 E B Industry’s Trusted Partner Since 1967

RMEEX Up in the Air

EBEENRER HKPC | £ Annual Report 2010-2011

EBESINIET  BEmMEEHBEMN
FENRAR—ESNPEEFTE -

BB B/ NMEHEITAS 9100:20093R Bk

MEESERZE  UTRRRE —E#
TR M2 EFM - UEEP/ N EEN
AS 9100FTE HOBFFE ©

BE— DR A AR TS FE R E KA
KEES - £ E 1B EBaines Simmons
Limited 2 5] SR BE =& 1E R - HRIR

PEREMMELRHFIRRE - ZAA=
BB AN 4 B AR I M 20 22 2 R R AR A &
BIIRNF EXFREERKEM  ESF
finZe R ae B WS o

in compliance with the Hong Kong
Aviation Requirements HKAR-21.

Besides, all newcomers to the
aviation industry have to be certified
with AS 9100 in order to become

a qualified supplier to aircraft
manufacturers. Supported by the SME
Development Fund of the Trade and

Industry Department, the Hong Kong
Aviation Industry Association (HKAIA)
and HKPC launched a project to help
HK SMEs comply with AS 9100:2009.
Through the development of an
operational model and the compilation
of a reference manual, the lead-time
required by SMEs for the adoption of
AS 9100 is reduced.

To enhance the professional
standards and competence of

local civil aviation personnel, HKPC
entered into a strategic partnership
with Baines Simmons Limited to
provide a specialist aviation training in
Hong Kong. Baines Simmons is the
international market leader in aviation
safety training and consultancy,

its clients include leading civil and
defense aviation organizations and
national regulatory authorities around
the world.

BHEZEEH
Stringent Safety Tests
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B REE T Z IR -
The aircraft seat prototype was undergoing a
flammability test.

g NETERK T B (B AR BER IR
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The project team has completed
the development of the first
engineering prototype of aircraft
seat. Test samples have been
sent to overseas laboratories

for a battery of safety tests,
including the flammability, static
and dynamic tests. Similar to
the crash tests conducted by
automakers, the air seat was
tested in a manner that simulated
the crash forces equivalent to

16 times the force of gravity. The
seat must be able to protect the
passenger from leg and spine
injuries.
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Support the

Healthcar

Devices Manufacturing Industry
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The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (HKIE) and HKPC jointly
organized the “BME 2010 Hong Kong Biomedical Engineering
International Conference and Pre-Conference Workshop” (BME2010)
in November 2010. The four-day event was sponsored by the
Professional Services Development Assistance Scheme. More than 40
scientific papers on biomechanics, medical imaging, biomaterials and

tissue engineering, etc. were presented in BME2010.
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With a growing aging population and increasing healthcare awareness,

the demand for medical services and devices is increasing steadily. HKPC
actively supports the healthcare devices manufacturing industry through
various promotional activities, research projects and consultancy services.

EENRBOREERRTEAHERS
MEI B AR - 0 XERM
HEmEE B2 510kRE MEREE o K
IR AR 3 MR AT - B FUE
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% - RIRIAT -

HKPC endeavoured to help many
OEMSs with the exploration of the
medical device market by providing
them with consultancy services
relating to the applications for FDA

510k and CE mark etc. to the medical

device regulatory authorities. We also
worked with them to develop certain
specific technologies, including a new
sensing element for bio-sensors and
a high-end cardiac signal monitoring
system. Through the consultancy
project, we successfully enhanced
the efficacy of pain treatments by
adapting our mature Powder Injection

Molding (PIM) technology to a thermal
treatment medical instrument.

During the year, HKPC has established
strong ties with both public and private
hospitals by providing risk management
training courses and furnishing a
knowledge sharing platform respectively.
HKPC will reinforce its support to local
healthcare providers so as to improve
the standard of their service.

EE) R AR 5 177 B B P P B8 B mS T T 5 ©

HKPC provides technical consultancy services to help
manufacturers explore the medical devices market.
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HKPC is dedicated to implement various service excellence schemes as a

part of its on-going efforts to elevate the customer service standard of our

service industry.

EEGE [EEIEERF ] FEIETAB LTS
1o

HKPC is the designated third-party assessor for the
“Quality Wedding Merchant Scheme”.
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ESD Service Limited, which is

the developer and operator of

the ESDlife website, worked in
partnership with HKPC to develop
and set up Hong Kong’s first
certification scheme for the wedding
services industry since 2008.

The “Quality Wedding Merchant
Scheme” (QWMS) helps brides- and
bridegrooms-to-be identify quality
merchants in the wedding services
sector. HKPC is the designated
third-party assessor for the scheme.
To date, over 300 outlets, including
hotels, restaurants, wedding
services providers and retailers,
have obtained the “Quality Wedding
Merchant” status since the launch of
the scheme.

As a technical consultant, HKPC
assisted the Employees Retraining
Board (ERB) to design and launch
the “ERB Manpower Developer
Award Scheme” in December
2009 to drive a corporate culture
that encourages manpower
development.
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The scheme acknowledges
an organization’s outstanding
accomplishments in manpower

development in accordance

with a set of objectives and
assessment criteria developed by
HKPC. Organizations that fulfill
the criteria will be accredited as
a “Manpower Developer” (MD) in

recognition of their achievements
and commitment to manpower
development. In the second year of
the implementation of the scheme,
51 major organizations and 6 SMEs
are nominated as a MD.

HENRR [ATREZFEE] HIETFEEAR -

HKPC developed the assessment criteria for the “ERB
Manpower Developer Award Scheme”.
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Under the Cleaner Production
Partnership Programme (CPPP),
manufacturers from various
sectors have been benefited
from the enhancement of their
production efficiency through
optimizing the use of material
and energy resources while
reducing pollution at source.
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Cleaner :
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ol | Love Hong Kong

I Love GREEN

% RIREIB L IER I EHILEWPIL -

Advanced spray guns minimize VOC emissions.

TEAR B FAAANE B L B 2 RFEFE R BER B FE B -
In-line recovery system helps PCB manufacturer reduce
consumption of fresh etchant and disposal costs.
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Cleaner Production Partnership Programme
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W BT E T MBI ER S
Combustion management system improves the fuel
efficiency of diesel boiler.

e |

The government-funded 5-year
Cleaner Production Partnership
Programme (CPPP) has completed its
third year of operation and was very
well received by the industry that up
to 1,107 projects have been approved
under the CPPP.

In recognition of their contributions
to cleaner production, 91 factories,
4 sourcing enterprises and 20
registered environmental technology
service providers received the
commendation under the Hong

Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production

A textile company revamped the
diesel boiler with a combustion
management system to accurately
control the combustion process.
With a more efficient method of
burning fuel, the company is able
to reduce its fuel consumption

by 2.6% on average, thereby
achieving an annual saving of
around HK$460,000.

By installing an in-line system
to recover spent etchant and
reclaim copper metal from

the etching process, a printed
circuit board manufacturer made
a substantial annual saving

of HK$2.8 million from the
reclaimed copper. Waste water
discharge was also significantly
reduced.

63

A brush factory identifies a cost-
effective approach to reduce

its volatile organic compounds
(VOCs) emission. The factory
replaced its conventional spray
guns with high volume low
pressure (HVLP) spray guns

to reduce VOCs emissions

while saving paint and solvent
correspondingly. The retrofit
brought about a yearly 9.8%
reduction of paint and solvent
consumption, thereby achieving a
cost saving of RMB294,000.

Partners Recognition Scheme
organized by the Environment
Bureau of the HKSAR and the
Guangdong Economic and

Information Commission.
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Building a

Sustainable

Jewellery Industry
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Following the success in building a
centralized wastewater treatment
plant for the Wuxi Metal Surface

Treatment Technology Industrial Park, EENERR [FHERARERE] WA BETRE
] IKEETEFR ) °

HKPC was appomted by Shenzhen HKPC will design and build the centralized wastewater

Zhongying Precious Metal Co. Ltd. treatment facilities for Lilang International Jewellery

. . . Industry Park in Shenzhen.
to design and build the centralized

wastewater treatment facilities for a
jewellery manufacturing industrial park in

Shenzhen.
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With the tightening controls over water
consumption and more stringent
discharge standards for factories in
Shenzhen, a printed circuit board
manufacturer commissioned HKPC to
design an effluent treatment system

to treat the wastewater discharged.
The system is able to produce treated
effluent in compliance with the stringent
requirements and recover 50% of the
wastewater.

TS 35k B == i (B 3
Environmental
Excellent Enterprises
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The excellent engineering
and superior performance of
the system was recognized
by the Shenzhen Municipal
Government and the
manufacturer was named
one of the three Excellent
Enterprises of the year in
waste reduction.
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Going green is a global business trend. HKPC has been
actively supporting Hong Kong manufacturers to take
advantage of the green economic opportunities by
introducing greener products that

provide good value for

consumers and the

environment.

EATYRBRE B EE K BEIIRREE -

Disposal of Cathode Ray Tubes (CRT) has become a
global environmental problem.
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In Hong Kong, the disposal of
cathode ray tubes (CRTs) in unwanted
televisions and computer displays has
long been a difficult problem since
the CRT glass contains toxic lead.
Being classified as a chemical waste,
the collection, transportation, storage
and disposal of CRTs are subject to
licensing control by the Environmental

Protection Department (EPD).

BBE
B IKRREF
CRT
Recycling
Process

BT s R

HKPC assisted a local CRT recycling
operator to comply with stringent
regulatory requirements and obtain the
chemical waste disposal license for
CRT from EPD. Recently, the operator
became the first Hong Kong company
to successfully export the glass
materials converted from disposed
CRTs to an overseas producer.

BT BB B) A BB T) B EE BB NERR -

HKPC helped the local CRT recycler successfully
obtain the waste disposal license from EPD.

DHERERIBREMEE -
EFHIEEE T

Disassembly of Television or

Monitor

Separation of CRT Glass and
other plastic, electronic and
metal parts

R RITHERE
BB RIEK

CRT glass broken and

cleaned in a sealed room

BEERRBE ERRKL

HEG9N B ERE R

CRT glass cullets packed
and exported to overseas
CRT manufacturing plant
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Thanks to a technical support programme launched by HKPC and the Hong

Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association, an iPhone case made of green plastic

materials successfully obtained the Hong Kong Green Label. This programme

aims to assist SMEs to comply with international green label standards.

BB
| Case for Green
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The product is made of eco-
friendly plastic which is

produced with corn husk, wheat
straws, bamboo tissues and

other agricultural remnants of
renewable resources. This product
exemplifies the concept of

sustainable development.

A computer database on detailed
requirements of common green
labels and a technical guidebook
setting out the best practices

on producing environmentally-
friendly plastic products were
also complied to provide

useful reference information to
manufacturers.
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Green Light
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HKPC has actively promoted

a wider application of the LED
lighting technology and supported
Hong Kong companies and young
talents to overcome the technical
barriers during the course of their

deployment.

In response to the needs of the
local solid state lighting industry,
the Hong Kong Solid State Lighting
Industry Consortium (HKSSLIC) was
set up with the help of HKPC. The
mission of HKSSLIC is to promote
the interests of the local solid-
state lighting industry, particularly
the LED industry, via various sub-
committees which will meet different
needs of the industry, ranging from
standards, testing and certification

to technology application.

P BB 3G R R B EE SR B X I 1 BYAR S R BTN

The Hong Kong Solid State Lighting Industry Consortium
was set up to promote green lighting industry.
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HKPC, HKSSLIC and the Hong Kong Innovative Technology and
Education Association jointly organized the Future City Lighting Design
Competition and recommended the winner to participate in the Peru
International Science Competition (CIENTEC 2010). “Intelligent Bus
Stop Advertising Light Box”, designed by a group of secondary five
students, was the champion of the engineering category and was
second runner-up overall out of over 350 entries from 40 countries and

regions.

Hong Kong winners of the Peru
International Science Competition

IEoN - BT REBZTEE N RH#ETT
—IBAEBMISEELEDEREMEING
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RIRIBAA RS — invisibLED @ B
FILEDEARBANIR - A B R
ZHMBEREN - EAKRERRS
B ENEAYILTNRARERE
TR BRABRTSHRE NORE
B KIgPERAKBETRAR AR ©
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In addition, with an aim to extend
the voluntary Energy Efficiency
Labelling Scheme (EELS) to LED
lamps, HKPC was appointed by
EMSD to conduct a survey on the
existing types of LED lamps on the
local market and overseas labelling
schemes for LED lamps.

To tackle the glare problem in
LED lighting, HKPC successfully
developed a high-quality and
environmentally-friendly lighting
system, “invisibLED”, which is

invisibL ED/& & 15 aR 5112 B H BT R OC
- BRIGHRELG TH 2 - B AJFIERER ©

With a specially-designed freeform reflector,
“invisibLED” can moderate the light intensity
and reduce energy consumption.

applicable to showcases in retail
shops. Using a specially-designed
freeform reflector, “invisibLED” can
moderate the light intensity and
reduce energy consumption. With
more even lighting and free of glare,
it is most suitable for merchandise
display in showcases while attaining

significant saving in energy costs.
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The use of low emission motor vehicles such as Electric Vehicle
(EV) is well identified to be one of the effective ways to reduce
greenhouse gas emission so as to combat global warming. For
years, HKPC has committed to promoting the development of low-
carbon automotive technologies.

FEUNEEEEDEH TANKI R -

EENREREENERARER
ET-REREY EREERRIE
MIIRIEE - A BEEERZER
BRAE - ERZMRBEZT  £EN
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BRRNRELGER o

HKPC was commissioned by
CLP Power Hong Kong Limited

to undertake a research on EV

charaina infrastructure in order to




HAIZ BRI Partnership for a Green Future

{E#%SHE Charging Up, Cooling Down

EBEENRER HKPC | £ Annual Report 2010-2011

RERZREENRET AR -
AE—FEAER B NHRER/TE
BEREMAMEL - P REERM
REEVRABITE - AN EAERTER
BIERHNBE

BECIESEREERM
Automatic Engine
Idle Stop System

charging standards. Its networked
design will allow easy integration

with smart grid and electronic

ERBELAAREESHNEDT £ENRERAT [BP5IERREE
BRG] OE > BAEERETERT —BREBER  H2&EER
BB - (MR =88 5| R MURIERER B REER © PR A R
BeEREE - NEME L - LAEFTEERSM LR

payment systems.

HKPC was commissioned by

the Environment Bureau to Sponsored by the Environment and Conservation Fund, HKPC

conduct a study to identify an
appropriate model of EVs suitable
for demonstrating the use of

commercial electric vehicles in Hong

embarked on the development of an Automatic Engine Idle Stop
System to turn off idling engine automatically when a motor vehicle
comes to a halt. The objective of this project is to reduce fuel
consumption and exhaust emission. The system will be installed

: in a passenger car, mini-van and taxi for further road testing and
Kong. The study covers an in-depth .
performance evaluation.

research into various technology
fields and the liaison with relevant

automobile stakeholders.
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Protecting the environment for future generations is a

responsibility that everyone must shoulder. HKPC continues to

drum up green awareness among business organizations and the

community at large.

[EBRRAEYE ] REBRRIEL BRI EE

RERFREL

Recognition for
Environmental Excellence

EENRERARITHRERNERE
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The Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence encourage

more enterprises to “go green”.

REMERRDERREHAOKE
[FBRREMFE | RLT [RAIE
A 2011 F K I8N 2B T
B OERIATBERKEBB1,20002E
S

HKPC has been commissioned by
the Hong Kong SAR Government
since 2008 for the development and
implementation of the Hong Kong
Awards for Environmental Excellence
(HKAEE).

The HKAEE seeks to promote
environmental excellence in the
community and show recognition to
organizations that have contributed
to environmental protection. Since its
inception in 2008, HKAEE has grown
in both depth and breadth, making it
the most prestigious environmental

award scheme in Hong Kong.

The Sectoral Awards of HKAEE, which
honour organizations with outstanding
environmental achievements, received
468 entries in 2011 and over 1,200

entries cumulatively.
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The Green Innovations Awards, newly
introduced to the HKAEE in 2011, aim
to acknowledge the achievements

of green innovations that have been
adopted by organizations and to
encourage more organizations to
showcase their green innovations

and inspire a wider application of
green innovative ideas in business
operations in the community.

B [FRREEFR] - PR [REH] —B T - (i s

The CGCC-Carbon Management Tool help SMEs assess their carbon footprint and draw
up carbon emissions reduction plan.

HpERE [HEH] EETA

Free Carbon Management Tool for SMEs
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CSA Group and HKPC launched ISO
14064 Greenhouse Gas management
training and certification in Hong Kong.

HE B FICSA GrouptE i — &
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HKPC and CSA Group jointly launched a series
of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) training programmes
based on the internationally-recognized ISO
14064 series of GHG measurement and reporting
standards. This is the first of its kind in Hong
Kong. CSA Group is an independent, non-profit-
making association with the objects to promote
the use of cleaner technologies by businesses
in the energy, infrastructure, and transportation
sectors and lead the development of the ISO
14064 GHG standards.

Comprising three training courses to be
introduced in early 2011, the new programmes will
provide organizations with concrete measures to
monitor, reduce and verify their carbon emissions
in accordance with internationally-recognized
standards.



HAIERE KK Partnership for a Green Future

# B EE Green Hong Kong

EBEENRER HKPC | £ Annual Report 2010-2011

BRerRe

Green Restaurant

2EAEB - BREBRMRE - /T
AAMEREEBERREGEG - £
ENRRBESERMEHSERER
BAREESNEYT - EHIER
PRt [BEEREFRAREENE
(QREMS) @ E#EEB B EFZER
XL ERRRRBORBEE -

oW
E'II_

i)

F

o

o
©oME
i3

fii

o

&

=

anp

S(V

[BEEAERREILTE] GERRIETRREXARFEFT

The “Quality Restaurant Environmental Management Scheme”

B EZRSREH - REIEHINER

e o fmEs | 4er o pm
= iﬁ BEEF + K i) ?gf IR 17?( % EE will help catering industry improve environmental performance
§$ *2 s ﬂ\f Eg §$ *2 %f:lt % ﬁ'ﬁ j% ﬁE\ Z; ﬁ % and enhance competitiveness.
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Hong Kong has more than ten thousand restaurants and
food outlets. In a bid to promote green practices to the
catering sector, HKPC and the Hong Kong Federation

of Restaurants and Related Trade (HKFORT) are
developing a voluntary “Quality Restaurant Environmental
Management Scheme” (QREMS) as sponsored by the
Environment and Conservation Fund. QREMS will be the
first certification scheme to assess the environmental

performance of catering operators in Hong Kong.

Participants will be evaluated in terms of energy
efficiency, water consumption, waste management,
water pollution control, air pollution control, noise
pollution control and overall environmental management.
Different classes of logos will be granted to participants
according to the assessment results in recognition of

their contribution to environment.
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To promote the awareness and implementation of CSR among different
sectors, HKPC launched the CSR**"® programme in 2009. Since its launch,

the programme successfully attracted the participation of companies from

the toys, electronics and chemical sectors.
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Participating companies were
encouraged to develop their own
CSR programmes based on the ISO
26000 standard and in line with
their strengths and stakeholders’
expectations.

[EBERHIPERRLE] 5 HEXIBHE T AT G #

1 R BB EH SRR

The Hong Kong Qutstanding Corporate Citizenship Award
aims to recognize the outstanding CSR achievements

of organizations from five different sectors.

HKPC also joined hands with the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service
and five other strategic partners to
establish the CSR Institute with an aim
to develop strategic partnerships with
leading CSR organizations in Hong
Kong for the promotion of CSR.
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HKPC joins hands with the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
and six other strategic partners to establish the

CSR Institute to promote the awareness

and implementation of CSR.
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To enhance the awareness and implementation
of CSR practices among SMEs in Hong

Kong, HKPC and the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University published the first Hong Kong SME
CSR Index, which was derived from the results
of a survey assessing the CSR performance of
180 SMEs from 20 industry sectors in terms
of employees, customers, investors, suppliers,
community and environment.

BRREERE
Green and Ethical
Procurement
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To raise the awareness of corporate
citizenship among local enterprises
and to assist them in incorporating

it in their business strategies, HKPC
kicked off the “Hong Kong Corporate
Citizenship Program” to build an
experience sharing platform for the
implementation of CSR.

The “Hong Kong Corporate
Citizenship Program”, sponsored by
the Committee on the Promotion of
Civic Education (CPCE) and the Bank
of China (Hong Kong), comprises

a series of activities including “The
Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate
Citizenship Award” to recognize

the outstanding CSR achievements

of organizations from five different
sectors; seminars and workshops; the
“Hong Kong Corporate Citizenship
Slogan Competition” and “Hong Kong
Corporate Citizenship Education
Exhibition”.

The “Hong Kong Corporate
Citizenship Slogan Competition”
attracted more than 2,000
participants. 35 organizations were
also recognized at the “Hong Kong
Corporate Citizenship Program - Hong
Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizen
Award” for their achievements in the
implementation and promotion of
CSR.

CFZ & 4)




#HE K Community Partnership

Z10REIE We Care

EBEENEER HKPC | %38 Annual Report 2010-2011

Serving the Industry and

ommunity

with One Heart
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To raise the public awareness on CSR, HKPC
partnered with the Chinese Manufacturers
Association of Hong Kong to set up an interactive
educational game booth in the 45th HK Brands
and Products Expo last December. An “Industrial
Art Zone” was also set up with the help of
HKPC’s volunteers to demonstrate the recycling
of discarded materials into decorative displays
and toys.
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Riding on the popularity of social media and mobile technologies, HKPC
teamed up with the Hong Kong Wireless Technology Industry Association
(WTIA), local youth service groups and academics to launch two anti-drug
support projects funded by the Beat Drugs Fund of the HKSAR Government.

BURE [
| Let’s Face It
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Through a series of online interactive thematic activities,

“Let’s Face It” and “DIAMOND” will help participants
enhance their self-esteem to say “NO” to drugs.
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Jointly developed with the University
of Hong Kong, “Let’s Face It” is a life
skills-based education campaign on
Facebook, YouTube, Twitter and other
social media platforms. Through eight
online interactive thematic activities,
participants will acquire skills to
develop self-esteem and the capacity
to say “NO” to drugs.

To date, a portal for “Let’s Face It”
(www.faceteen.org) has been
launched and an online survey

is underway to evaluate teens’
psychosocial and emotional state
and behavioural repertoire in
relation to drugs taking before and
after participating in the campaign
activities.
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Using mobile and new electronic
media, the “DIAMOND -
DIAlogue*MObileeNo Drugs”

(DIAMOND) project, developed
jointly with WTIA, engages high-
risk youths on a mobile dialogue
platform with virtual mentors to
assert positive influence on anti-
drug. The platform will be launched
in September 2011.

let's Pace it
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In April 2010, the “Wise Business” programme was launched jointly with

the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation to help local SMEs take

advantage of the opportunities in Asia’s recovering economy.
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A host of new initiatives were
introduced in the past year to
consolidate our efforts in extending
our reach to the business community
and other commercial organizations.

The programme includes a 12-part
TV series on NOW Business News
Channel, featuring the success stories
of local enterprises in industrial
upgrading as well as expert advice on
ways to achieve business success;
and free consultancy services for
SMEs. The highlight of the programme
features an SME Summit in August,
which explored the business
opportunities arising from the Twelfth
Five-Year Plan announced by the
Central Government.



#HE K Community Partnership

EE{E® Promoting our Mission

EBEENEER HKPC | %38 Annual Report 2010-2011

EENRRERNEETHERERENE
HTImME R - UERXEN A
F/PERRFEER - AREROKY
w5 e

RTEEZ ALTRBEE N BRE G
R - EENBRYET —ERE
FiBEFH A B E AR T3 2R
® o mAR - R FEIMEBNFE
TREBH TEIRRY - EanmatEl
2~ FEREE4,6480 555 K 1701A
REREIGFEENS -

The Council also teamed up with
local business publications, SME Link
and Capital Entrepreneur, to publish
regular columns in December 2010

and February 2011 respectively to
feature various latest policy initiatives
concerning SMEs and the success
stories of HKPC's clients.

Communicating our mission and
services to a wider audience, our
visitor programme introduces a

wide spectrum of industrial support
services to local, Mainland and
overseas delegations both through
visits to our Council and other related
industry support organizations. Under
this programme, 4648 visitors and
170 delegations visited us during the
year.

[EEERE ] F/) PlEesER R ER
[+= - BHE|] FrasaiEs -
“Wise Business” SME Summit helps the industry

explore business opportunities arising from the Twelfth
Five-Year Plan announced by the Central Government.
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A trainee consultant programme was introduced to recruit top-notch university

graduates to groom necessary talent for our long-term development needs.

Trainees receive professional and intensive on-the-job training in different

divisions with the possibility of taking up Associate Consultant positions upon

completion of their one-year programmes.

EEBEK
| Grooming Our Team
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Trainee consultant programme is introduced to recruit
top-notch university graduates to meet our long-term

development needs.

People are our most valuable
asset. By creating a rewarding and
supportive work environment and
by wholeheartedly embracing a
work-life balance, we are building a
better organization for our staff and
stakeholders.

It is an HKPC priority to build

a resourceful and professional
workforce. Through a structured
talent development programme,
we are building an erudite team of
consultants.

HKPC is committed to the long-term
growth and sustainable development
of staff members. Staff members
are encouraged to participate in
many public programmes offered

by our Productivity Training Institute
and other external institutions.

In 2010/11, HKPC allocated an
average training budget of over
HK$5,000 for each staff member,
resulting in an impressive total of
about 15,000 training hours.
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To upgrade staff academic
qualifications, both for their own
personal development and the
professional support and ongoing
growth of HKPC, Academic Training

Scholarship and Sponsorship
programmes were introduced in
April 2009 to cover Bachelor, Master
or Doctorate Degree programmes
undertaken by staff.

Staff engagement is critical to
building our colleagues’ commitment
and collaboration. Every month our
Executive Director and three Branch
Directors invite staff members of
different divisions and at different
levels to “Table for Ten” lunch
gatherings to listen to their opinions
on the issues they are concerned
about such as policies, practices

or directions. This is a useful and
well-received channel to build up
partnership between our senior
management and staff members

by large and effect organizational
improvement measures.

A focus on continuous improvement
(Cl) was introduced to motivate staff
members to initiate constructive
corporate-wide and cross-divisional
improvement suggestions in work
flow improvements, cost reductions,
customer service improvements and
innovation, to create a culture of
continuous improvement throughout
the organization.
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During the year, the Staff Recreation
Club (SRC) organized a series of
activities to enhance team spirit,
offer work-stress relief and support

community services.

SRC also mobilized staff’s
participation in external charity and
community events, including Dress
Special and Blood Donation Days.
Sports and leisure activities, ranging
from hiking, bowling and photography
to sightseeing tours and cooking

lessons were also organized to help
staff attain a more balanced and
healthy lifestyle.

The Club also organized monthly
staff luncheons, featuring prominent
personalities as guest speakers to
expand staff vision and broaden their
horizons. Topics covered ranged from
current issues to investment, health,
sports as well as arts and culture.
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The Council

The Council is the HKPC’s governing
body, providing strategic leadership
in the fulfillment of the functions of
HKPC.

The Council comprises not more than
23 Members appointed by the Chief
Executive of the HKSAR, of whom five
shall be public officers. Among the
non-official members (who represent
management, labour and professional
or academic interests), a Chairman
and a Deputy Chairman shall be

appointed.

The Chairman, and other Members,
of the Council are non-executive

in nature. The Council was chaired
by Mr Clement Chen since 1 July
2009. In the year under review, the
Council has convened four meetings.
Attendance records of individual
member are available on page 102.

Council Members’
Responsibility for the
Accounts

Council Members acknowledge their
responsibility for ensuring that the
preparation of the annual accounts
of HKPC is in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards.

The statement of the Auditor of HKPC
about their reporting responsibilities
on the accounts of the HKPC is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on page 117.

Council’s Committees

Under the auspices of the Council,
four committees have been set up to
look after different aspects of Council
Business. These four committees are
the Audit Committee, the Finance
Committee, the Staffing Committee
and the Business Development
Committee. All the Committees are
accountable to the Council.

The minutes of the Council and
Committees (except discussion items
containing commercially sensitive

or confidential information and the
minutes of the Audit Committee) are
made available on a non-attributable
basis on HKPC’s website.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is established to
monitor and make recommendations
to enhance HKPC'’s healthy corporate
governance in financial reporting,

risk management, internal control,
appointment and performance of

the external auditor, and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations.
The Committee is authorized by the
Council to investigate any activity

and resolve any disagreement within
its scope of duties. Staff members
can directly report to the Chairman

of the Audit Committee on cases of
malpractice or irregularities.

The Audit Committee is chaired by a
Council member and currently has 6
members. It met three times during
the year under review. Attendance
records of individual members are set
out on page 102.
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Finance Committee

The Finance Committee monitors
the financial performance of HKPC
and ensures that funds made
available are properly accounted

for. The Committee approves
changes to HKPC'’s policies and
practices relating to procurement,
building management, fixed asset
management and charging levels of
HKPC'’s services. The Committee
recommends HKPC'’s three-year
strategic plan, three-year forecast,
an annual programme and estimates
and the transfer of funds between
major heads of expenditure, for
consideration by the Council. The
Committee also advises the Council
on matters relating to HKPC's financial
policies and matters that have a
significant financial impact on HKPC.

The Finance Committee, which

is chaired by a Council member,
currently has six members. During
the year in review, it met three times.
Attendance records of individual
members are set out on page 102.

Staffing Committee

The Staffing Committee monitors the
staffing situation and recommends
changes to the Council where
appropriate. It advises the Council

on human resources development
policies. The Committee also monitors

HKPC’s general terms and conditions
of service, to ensure that these

are adequate to recruit and retain
competent staff, and recommends
changes to the Council where
necessary. The Committee provides a
channel between the Council and staff
for the communication of grievances
about general terms and conditions

of service, in situations where they
cannot be resolved by consultation.
The Staffing Committee is chaired *
by a Council member and currently
has nine members. It met four times
during the year in review. Attendance
records of individual members are set
out on page 102.

Business Development
Committee

The Business Development
Committee monitors the performance
of HKPC’s subsidiary companies,
recommends the appointment of
Chairmen, endorses annual budgets,
and identifies subvention implications
for the approval of the Council. The
Committee reviews business activities,
the Services Audit Statement annually,
explores new business opportunities,
and advises the Council on the
business development of HKPC in
relation to HKPC'’s role in the changing
industrial environment.
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The Business Development
Committee is chaired by a Council
member. It currently has eight
members. During the year in review, it
met three times. Attendance records
of individual members are set out on
page 102.

Internal Control and Risk
Management

The Council attaches significant
importance to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance

and the enhancing of its transparency
and accountability to the public. The
external and internal audit systems are
instrumental in this regard.

External Audit

The Council has appointed KPMG as
the external auditor to conduct an
audit of its financial statements.

The external audit plays an important
role in reviewing the financial
statements as well as strengthening
the internal controls of HKPC. Before
the audit commences, the external
auditor discusses the nature and
scope of the audit with the Audit
Committee if necessary, together
with any matters the external auditor
may wish to discuss in the absence
of management. Any management
letter from the external auditor and
the management’s response will be
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Internal Audit

The Council’s Internal Audit Unit plays
a major role in monitoring the HKPC’s
internal corporate governance.

The three-member unit is led by a
Principal Consultant (Internal Audit),
who reports directly to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and has direct
access to the full Council through the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

At each and every Audit Committee
meeting, the Internal Audit Unit
reports to the Committee its findings
on selected audit programme and
compliance checking.

In the year under review, the

Internal Audit Unit conducted

nine audit programmes and 22
compliance checks covering financial,
procurement, administration, project,
human resources and information
technology (IT) aspects. The audit
programmes are reviewed and agreed
by the Audit Committee in advance.

Internal Control

To ensure an effective system of
internal control is in place, the
Management has also performed the
following tasks during the reporting
period:

e review the effectiveness of the
system of internal control and
report to the Council through
review of the findings and
recommendations as set out in the
reports of internal audit;
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e review the resources for all
divisions during the annual
Programme and Estimates
exercise;

e conduct frequent review of the
business, external environment
and significant risks as part and
parcel of the annual Programme
and Estimates exercise; and

e meet with external auditors
together with the Audit Committee
Chairman and report any control
weaknesses as well as the
effectiveness of financial reporting
and compliance as discussed
during the meeting of the Audit
Committee.

Transparency

In accordance with the requirements
of the HKPC Ordinance, the HKPC'’s
Annual Report, with the statement of
accounts, is tabled at the Legislative
Council each year. To enhance
transparency, the annual emoluments
of each and every senior executive
at the top two tiers of the HKPC
management are disclosed under
Note 17 to the financial statements on
page 156.

The attendance of Members in Council
and Committees is detailed on page
102.

Since November 2009, the minutes
of the Council and Committees
(except discussion items containing
commercially sensitive or confidential
information and the minutes of the
Audit Committee) have been made
available on a non-attributable basis
on HKPC’s website.

Separately, the Council adopted

a two-tier reporting system for
declarations of interest by Council
Members, who are required to
disclose upon first appointment and
annually thereafter proprietorships,
partnerships or directorships of
companies. They are also required to
disclose remunerated employments,
offices, trades, professions or
vocations as well as shareholdings in
companies, public or private (being
1% or more of the company’s issued
share capital).

The register of declarations is made
available for public inspection upon
request. Furthermore, Members are
required, as soon as practicable
after they have become aware of it,
to disclose to the Chairman (or the
Council) their interest in any matter
under consideration by the Council
prior to the discussion.
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Council and Standing Committee Meeting Attendance Record

EEg BEEK EBBR g &5t
4/2010 - 3/2011 Council SC BDC FC AC
BREA(SEA - mgmies  AFHL
Mr Clement Chen Cheng-jen, BBS, JP 4/4 11 3/3
FEZELE - ua . Ave+ (£31/12/2010)
Dr The Hon Samson Tam Wai-ho, Jp (till 31/12/2010) 2/3 2/2 2/2
[t Pt
Mr Victor Ng Chi-keung 4/4 11 2/2
[FA=EE e
Mr Albert Au Siu-cheung 3/4 2/3
PRIEE B+
Dr Cliff Chan Chok-ki 3/4 3/3
PRGNS L+ A v+ (£31/12/2010)
Dr Raymond Chan, Jp (till 31/12/2010) 2/3 1/2
BN EE TSN » smses - AP ML
Ir Daniel Cheng Man-chung, MH, JP 4/4 1/3
BEE I+
Dr Fan Cheuk-hung 3/4 2/4 0/1
BIRESLAE - 2895 AFaL
Mr Jimmy Kwok Chun-wah, mMH, JP 4/4 8//8 11
FEWHE (£31/12/2010)
Prof Lee Wing-bun (till 31/12/2010) 2/3 3/3 0/2 2/2
ZAEW A (F91/1/2011)
Mr Leung Yam-shing (from 1/1/2011) 11 1/1
EEERE  ATmt
Mr Lo Foo-cheung, Jp 2/4 2/3
-3 JFS
Mr Andrew Mak Yip-shing 2/4 2/4
SELHX (H1/1/2011)
Prof Helen Meng Mei-ling (from 1/1/2011) 0/1 0/1
RA&EL
Dr David Ng Tai-chiu 4/4 3/3
PARBRIE AL - Avm+ (HH1/1/2011)
Mrs Katherine Ngan Ng Yu-ying, JP (from 1/1/2011) 11 11
BONEET - mamEs - ATHE
Dr Elizabeth Shing Shiu-ching, BBS, JP 3/4 3/4 11
BREEEL - wemize - Ava+ (£31/12/2010)
Dr Carrie Willis, sss, Jp (till 31/12/2010) 3/3 2/3
iR (H1/1/2011)
Mr Jack Yeung Chung-kit (from 1/1/2011) 11 11
Mr Choi Kam-wah, MH 3/4 4/4 3/3
EICTRAE - wmmE
Mr Poon Siu-ping, MH 3/4 4/4
B AL 27 +
Ms Marilyn Tang Yin-lee 4/4 3/4

RABEREBEERBEEIWER (BAREH) A KMES

Permanent Secretary for Commerce and Economic

Development (Communications and Technology) or her

alternative members 4/4

BB REERIHEMBRHEES
Commissioner for Innovation and Technology or her
alternative members 4/4 4/4 3/3 3/3 3/3

TXESGEERIHEEREER
Director-General of Trade and Industry or her alternative
members 4/4

TR 5 & SR (R 2 A

Deputy Commissioner for Labour or his alternative members 4/4

D R E R N ET

Government Economist or her alternative members 4/4 3/3

EBEENREREE
Executive Director of HKPC 4/4 3/3 3/3 2/3

BESH -BEFFRBE  XBERR -FHRRZES UK -MEZEE & -FHLE8g

SC - Staffing Committee, BDC — Business Development Committee, FC — Finance Committee, AC — Audit Committee
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BERRER

Performance at a glance

FERRER 2009/10 2010/11
Key Performance Measures

PR 7 £2 fit
Service Delivery
FEfIIE B 88
Number of consultancy projects 965 1443
HIBRRIZZ B A
Number of training course participants 4,400 6,172
RE EREEIZ2MEAH
Number of people attended the exhibitions/study missions/conferences 4,680 3,310
B#% (B&x)
Financial Result (HK$M)
FERIE B A
Income from consultancy projects 171.302 202.206
FIARERIZUA
Income from training courses 27.867 21.002
RE ZERE S gHKA
Income from exhibitions/study missions/conferences 7.482 7.74
SEXERIEA WA
Income from manufacturing support projects 24.604 23.408
M
Effectiveness
TiSHRE EENRRIXHERMNEE HRES
Marketing effort 2B EEE
Number of events/networking activities for industry
associations/free seminars 269 252
20E& A8
Number of people attended 22,792 21,182
BEmE BEEmEEEH

Customer satisfaction Customer satisfaction index 8.47 8.64
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Productivity is the effective use of innovation
and resources to increase the value-added
content of products and services. The true
source of competitive advantage, it creates
long-term economic viability and a better
standard of living for all.

The Hong Kong Productivity Council (HKPC) is
a multi-disciplinary organization established by
statute in 1967. HKPC’s mission is to promote

productivity excellence through the provision
of integrated support across the value chain of
Hong Kong firms, to achieve the more effective
utilization of resources, enhance the value-
added content of products and services, and

to increase international competitiveness.

HKPC is governed by a Council comprising
a Chairman and 22 members. This Council
represents managerial, labor, academic and
professional interests, as well as related
government departments in Hong Kong.
HKPC’s operations are supported by fee
income from its services and government
subventions.

HKPC'’s headquarters at HKPC Building in
Kowloon Tong features various advanced
manufacturing and testing facilities as well

as exhibition and training venues. HKPC also
operates three wholly-owned subsidiaries in
Guangzhou, Dongguan and Shenzhen serving
Hong Kong manufacturers in the Pearl River
Delta.

With more than 200 professional consultants,
HKPC and its subsidiaries provide a multitude
of services in technology transfer, consultancy,
training and other support services in the
areas of manufacturing technology, information
technology, environmental technology and
management systems. These services are
designed to help industry move successfully

up the value chain.
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BB, MH, JP @#
Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee, MH, JP

Executive Director
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Mrs Mak has over 20 solid years of experience in information
technology. Prior to joining Hong Kong Productivity Council,
Mrs Mak founded her own IT consultancy business. She also
has extensive working experience in both private and public
sectors having held key posts in various communication
companies as well as statutory body.

Along with her full-time career, Mrs Mak has been very active
within the Hong Kong IT Community. She was the President
of Hong Kong Computer Society (1995-1998), Chairman of
the Advisory Committee of Science Faculty of Hong Kong
Baptist University, Chairman of Committee in Information
Technology Training and Development of Vocational Training
council, Vice Chairman of the General Support Program
Vetting Committee of the Innovation and Technology Fund,
Vice Chairman of Employee Retraining Board, Board member
of Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation,
member of Hong Kong Councils for Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational Qualifications and member of the
Social Welfare Advisory Committee.

In addition to being an enthusiast in promoting the quality of
higher education and enriching vocational education, Mrs Mak
is also an advocate in advancing professional recognition for
IT professionals in Hong Kong. She has assumed Chairman
of the Information & Communications Technology / Industry
Training Advisory Committee under the Education Bureau of
HKSAR Government. Under her leadership, the Specification
of Competency Standards for the IT industry was successfully
developed. She has also taken up the position of Director
In-charge of the Hong Kong Institute for IT Professional
Certification which pioneers the first IT Professional
credentialing scheme in Hong Kong.

In 1995, Mrs Mak was recognized as one of Ten Most
Outstanding Young Persons in the Hong Kong community
that made significant IT contributions. In 1999, she was
conferred Distinguished Fellow of the Hong Kong Computer
Society. In 2002, she was appointed as a “Justice of
Peace”. In July 2007, she was awarded “Medal of Honor” by
the HKSAR Government. And in November 2008, she was
conferred Honorary Fellow of Vocational Training Council.

Mrs Mak joined HKPC in November 2010.
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ML aies (gmEs)
Mr Tony Lam Director, Corporate Services
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Having worked in the private sector, Tony Lam joined the
civil service as an Administrative Officer in 1991 gaining
some 20 years of experience in public administration
before joining the Hong Kong Productivity Council. Over
the years, Mr Lam has been involved in the formulation
and implementation of public policy in a very wide range
of areas. His experience covers health care, municipal
services and public security. Additionally, he has also been
involved in the policy areas of industry, trade, innovation

107
and technology development.

Prior to joining the Hong Kong Productivity Council, Mr Lam
participated in the planning and implementation of several
cross-boundary mega transport infrastructures including
the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, the Guangzhou-
Shenzhen—-Hong Kong Express Rail Link and the Hong
Kong-Shenzhen Airport Rail Link.

Mr Lam graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Social Sciences (Honours) Degree. He joined
HKPC as Director, Corporate Services, in August 2009.
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Mr Edmund Sung Director, Business Consulting
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Edmund Sung has over 30 years of working experience

in management positions in both the private and public
sectors. His engagement has mainly been in assisting
enterprises and organizations in the manufacturing and
service industries as well as the government and NGOs of
Hong Kong and Mainland China to gain global competitive
advantages through productivity and quality excellence.

Mr Sung is currently a member of the Small and Medium
Enterprises Committee, having been appointed to the post
by the Chief Executive of HKSAR in 2000; a member of
CreateSmart Initiative Vetting Committee; a member of the
Professional Services Development Assistance Scheme
Vetting Committee; a member of the Organizing Committee
and Judging Panel for the Hong Kong Awards for Industries
in the Productivity and Quality category; Fellow of The
Institute of Management Consultants Hong Kong; Fellow;
Honourary Advisor of the Hong Kong Quality Management
Association; Vice-President of the Guangdong-Hong Kong
Association for the Promotion of Technology Enterprises
(HK) Limited; Honorary Advisor (since 2008) of the Hong
Kong Electronics & Technologies Association; Fellow (since
2003) of The Hong Kong Institute of Engineers; Fellow
(since 2007) of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and
past President of HKU Engineering Alumni Association
(2004-5).

Mr Sung holds both a Bachelor and Master Degree in
Industrial Engineering from the University of Hong Kong
and a Post Graduate Diploma in Management Studies from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has been with
HKPC since 1981 and is currently the Director of Business

Consulting.
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Mr Joseph Poon Director, Technology Development
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Joseph Poon has over 30 years of experience in business
and consulting. His portfolio spans automotive, innovation,
automation, intellectual property management, patent and
trademark, intellectual capital management, to branding
and Kaizen consulting.

Prior to joining HKPC, Mr Poon held a senior management
position in a machinery manufacturing company. He is
currently an executive committee member of the Hong
Kong Electronic Industries Association; Honourary Advisor
of the Hong Kong Diecasting and Foundry Association;
committee member of the Hong Kong Mould & Die Council;
Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Association for the
Advancement of Science and Technology; honorary board
member of the Hong Kong Medical and Healthcare Device
Industries Association; Director of the SZ-HK Productivity
Foundation Co Ltd; as well as Chairman of EcoLED Lighting
Technology Ltd, and the member of the Commercialization
Committee of the Automotive Parts and Accessories R&D
Centre where he played a pivotal role in its establishment.

Mr Poon obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of London, UK and a
Master of Science degree in Production Management and
Manufacturing Technology from Strathclyde University, UK.

Mr Poon joined HKPC in 1986 and is currently the Director
of Technology Development.
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Automotive Parts and
Accessory Systems R&D
Centre Ltd.

Automotive Parts and Accessory
Systems R&D Centre Ltd. (APAS) was
established on 31 March 2006 by
the HKSAR Government under the
Hong Kong R&D Centre Programme
to undertake market-led R&D
programmes and commercialize their
results for the development of the
local automotive parts and accessory
systems industry. APAS is hosted by
HKPC.

In consultation with the relevant
industries and academic sector,
APAS has adopted a technology
roadmap which covers 4 focus
technology areas, namely hybrid

and electric vehicles; safety and
environment; electronics, controls
and software; and new materials and
processes. Guided by this roadmap,
research projects are undertaken

in collaboration with research
institutes and industry partners in
Hong Kong and the Mainland. With
many research projects poised for
completion, APAS will actively pursue
commercialization opportunities for

the project deliverables.

To maintain a close linkage with
industry, APAS organizes technical
seminars, participates in trade shows,
pays visits to major auto makers and
component suppliers in China, and
conducts presentations at different
automotive related events. The APAS
R&D Centre Club, which disseminates
industry information, reports and
standards, has more than 600

members.

Board of Directors:

Dr TL Ng (Chairman of the Board),
Prof K B Chan, Mr Gordon Chan,
Dr Roy Chung, Dr Herbert Hui,

Prof Lee Tak Chi, Dr Brian Li,

Dr S W Lui, Mrs Agnes Mak,

Mr W H Ng, Mr Peter Sun,

Prof Alex Wai and Miss Janet Wong
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BMM Ltd.

BMM Ltd. was established on 1 April
1995 to manage the HKPC Building.
It is financed by management fee
income on a cost recovery basis by
HKPC. Since its establishment, the
company has been providing quality
building management service to both
HKPC and its tenants. During the
year, the BMM Ltd. assisted HKPC
to implement projects to upgrade
the existing building facilities as

well as the overall environment. It
also assisted HKPC to implement

an annual preventive maintenance
programme to ensure the proper

functioning of the building systems.

In January 2011, a review was
conducted on the need for the
continued maintenance of a subsidiary
to provide building management
support. The review concluded

that the subsidiary arrangement

was unnecessary and supported

an in-house building management
function for cost effectiveness. In this
connection, the staff of BMM Ltd. will
be transferred to HKPC by the end of
April 2011, followed by the winding up

of the subsidiary.

Board of Directors:
Mr Tony Lam (Chairman of the Board)

and Dr Samuel Leung

Productivity (Holdings)
Limited and Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprises in the
PRD

Productivity (Holdings) Limited was
established on 28 July 2003 with
the objective to promote productivity -
excellence through the provision of

integrated support across the value

chain of Hong Kong firms operating in

the Pearl River Delta (PRD).

This objective is achieved through
incorporating 3 Wholly Foreign Owned
Enterprises (WFOEs) in the PRD,
namely Productivity (Guangzhou)
Consulting Co., Ltd., Productivity
(Dongguan) Consulting Co., Ltd., and
Productivity (Shenzhen) Consulting
Co., Ltd. in 2003 and 2004.
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Productivity (Holdings)
Limited

Board of Directors:

Mr Clement Chen (Chairman of the
Board), Mrs Agnes Mak, Mr Victor Ng,
Dr Elizabeth Shing and Miss Janet
Wong

Productivity (Guangzhou)
Consulting Co., Ltd.
Productivity (Dongguan)
Consulting Co., Ltd.
Productivity (Shenzhen)
Consulting Co., Ltd.

Board of Directors:

Mr Tony Lam (Chairman of the Board),
Dr Samuel Leung, Mr Jeremy Poon,
Mr Joseph Poon, Mr Edmund Sung
and Mr Alfonso Tam

HKPC Technology (Holdings)
Company Limited

HKPC Technology (Holdings)
Company Limited (HKPCT) was
established on 1 September 2004 as
a vehicle for the commercialization
of HKPC’s patents, technologies

and project deliverables with market
potential. The Company aims to
develop a new technology-based
platform through providing a more
direct and effective avenue to turn
R&D deliverables into products.

B ZE2011F3A31H

During the year, HKPCT has
successfully commercialized
invisibLED, a quality eco lighting
system capable of moderating

the light intensity and energy
consumption of LED with the aid

of freeform reflectors. HKPCT has
also commercialized a Food Waste
Conversion System jointly developed
with the South China Agricultural
University to substantially and rapidly
reduce food waste by over 70%

as compared to the conventional
composting method.

Board of Directors:

Mr Clement Chen (Chairman of the
Board), Ir Daniel Cheng,

Mr Lo Foo-cheung, Mrs Agnes Mak
and Miss Janet Wong

As at 31 March 2011
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Hong Kong
Productivity
Council Directorate

BREREMN
Technology
Development
Branch

TEEER
Business
Consulting
Branch

HWBSER
Corporate
Services
Branch

EENEAR
Hong Kong
Subsidiaries

At S 2 ]
Mainland
Subsidiaries

SLERHRED BRI S R ED REEEED EZEMHTE X HEN (BIMN) 7
Manufacturing IT Industry Corporate EEALARA A BRA A
Technology Division Development Division Communications Automotive Parts and Productivity
Division Accessory Systems (Guangzhou)
MEEHREB MRS IR E R & D Centre Ltd. Consulting Co., Ltd.
Materials Process Management BA 5 M A TR ED
Technology Division Division Finance & HENAEER HEH (RZ) #H
Administration Division BIRAT] BRAF]
Bl R AN ERESD EEERE BMM Ltd. Productivity
Innovation and IP Business BEANER (Dongguan)
Division Management Division Corporate Human HEED (ERR) Consulting Co., Ltd.
Resources Division AR AR
FEREFE A IR Productivity HEN ORI
Automotive & Productivity Training (Holdings) Ltd. BRAR]
Electronics Division Institute Productivity
EENRHR (EER) (Shenzhen)

ISR
Environmental
Management Division

BEREAF
HKPC Technology
(Holdings) Co. Ltd.

Consulting Co., Ltd.
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To the council members of Hong Kong Productivity Council
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Productivity Council
Ordinance)

We have audited the consolidated accounts of the Hong Kong
Productivity Council (“the Council”) set out on pages 119 to 164, which
comprise the consolidated and Council balance sheets as at 31 March
2011, the consolidated and Council income and expenditure accounts,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in reserves and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Council’s responsibility for the consolidated accounts
The Council is responsible for the preparation of consolidated accounts
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance
and for such internal control as the Council determines is necessary

to enable the preparation of consolidated accounts that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
accounts based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as

a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated accounts are free from

material misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated accounts. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
accounts, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the consolidated accounts that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated accounts.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated accounts give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Council and of the Group as at 31 March 2011
and of the Council’'s and the Group’s surplus and the Group’s cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 July, 2011
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M5
Note 2011 2010
ERBEE Non-current assets
EFEBE Fixed assets 4 $207,827,981 $200,400,330
R IES A HIIfT B Investments in non-controlled
NalHERE subsidiaries 5 10,000 10,000
Bt N B Interest in an associate 6 1,412,059 1,340,524
$209,250,040 $201,750,854
REBEE Current assets
SHFE M Consumables $30,700 $ _
FEUSARZX ~ AT FRIE Accounts receivable, prepayments
MiEe and deposits 7 43,201,874 29,825,864
TR HIIR Tax recoverable 20(c) 22,203 =
wITFEREES Cash at bank and in hand 8 178,109,007 154,738,793
$221,363,784 $184,564,657
pE =R Current liabilities
ERERR N IERTE R Accounts payable and accruals 9 $154,570,679 $134,867,684
JE S FE S I B B8 Amount due to a non-controlled
N BIFRIE subsidiary 10 377,655 361,306
RN E Q] Amount due to an associate 10 756,615 739,221
BN E=H Government loan 11 - 13,025,403
$155,704,949 $148,993,614
REBEEZFRE Net current assets $65,658,835 $35,571,043
REE NET ASSETS $274,908,875 $237,321,897
EENREMRER Capital subvention fund and reserves
iRk FHE attributable to the Council $271,815,161 $233,716,165
eI MRS Non-controlling interests 3,093,714 3,605,732
EXREHERFEE CAPITAL SUBVENTION FUND
AND RESERVES 12 $274,908,875 $237,321,897

EENBR2011F7 A26 ALl BT o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 26 July, 2011

F /& Chairman

2% /& Deputy Chairman

F1262F 164 B EBEAREKBEH—35 © The notes on pages 126 to 164 form part of these accounts.
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M5
Note 2011 2010
FRBEE Non-current assets
EEE Fixed assets 4 $207,453,711  $200,037,980
RITEBRARRIKRE Investments in subsidiaries 5 18,732,000 18,732,001
$226,185,711  $218,769,981
REBEE Current assets
FEUER R ~ TERT B K Accounts receivable, prepayments
e and deposits 7 $41,476,151 $25,500,672
i Y= NGIE L] Amounts due from subsidiaries 10 11,660,560 4,522,536
WRITFER NS Cash at bank and in hand 8 151,451,063 143,282,686
$204,587,774 $173,305,894
REAE Current liabilities
FEBRA M FEET B Accounts payable and accruals 9 $147,209,306 $130,844,098
NN ENGIECE Amounts due to subsidiaries 10 11,450,283 13,805,289
BT E Government loan 11 - 13,025,403
$158,659,589 $157,674,790
hEEESSE Net current assets $45,928,185 $15,631,104
FEE NET ASSETS $272,113,896  $234,401,085
EXEPESRFHE CAPITAL SUBVENTION FUND
AND RESERVES 12 $272,113,896 $234,401,085

EEHNBR201157 A26 B L FF A 3, o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 26 July, 2011

F126EF 164 AN EBAKREH—LD -

+ & Chairman

2= /& Deputy Chairman

The notes on pages 126 to 164 form part of these accounts.
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Note 2011 2010
KA Income
KETEBHBNE B Government subvention for recurrent
activities 1E $153,748,000 $153,019,250
PR 75 A Services income 14 310,852,372 278,716,220
EH AU A Other income 15 11,863,646 8,139,178
JE(L B & N B B gk Share of profit of an associate 39,529 =
$476,503,547 $439,874,648
i Expenditure
BB s Staff emoluments 16 (271,793,710)  (260,994,451)
b Other expenses 19 (206,647,823) (178,546,002)
R N B &R Share of loss of an associate - (9,302)
$(1,937,986) $324,893
Ri1E Taxation 20(a) (40,354) (157,893)
$(1,978,340) $167,000
ey () Transfer from/(to):
— B N5ITE B /4R & A — Capital subvention fund to match
EHHWERE S with the related costs of
- REETEERE — loss on disposal of fixed assets 12(a) 611,379 1,194,548
—FANEER — depreciation charge for the year 12(a) 18,570,001 18,463,854
— BNERFEZH — interest expenses on government
loan 12(a) 926,912 1,467,107
—FABEETEEEEAR - Difference between fixed assets
BYPHER purchased and capital subvention
for the year 12(a) (444,542) 3,318,147
— FEEHI S — Non-controlling interests 12(d 525,318 (180,415)
HIWAREBENBERR Net surplus transfer to revenue
reserve 12(b) $18,210,728 $24,430,241

F126EF 164 BRI EBAKRE H—2BH o

The notes on pages 126 to 164 form part of these accounts.
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hE=s
Note 2011 2010
EITWAZBREENZERE Net surplus transfer to revenue reserve $18,210,728  $24,430,241
FRIEEGHIEERE Non-controlling interests in
the results for the year (525,318) 180,415
$17,685,410 $24,610,656
FREMEEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year
BB R E A R Exchange differences on translation
([HE]) KB AR of accounts of People’s Republic of
FREMNEREZR China (“PRC”) subsidiaries $104,942 $159,868
FREHEREH Total comprehensive income
for the year $17,790,352  $24,770,524
R®E : Attributable to:
—XENR — The Council $18,302,370 $24,493,529
— JEE I e — Non-controlling interests (512,018) 276,995
FREZEBE Total comprehensive income
for the year $17,790,352 $24,770,524

F126EF 164 BRI EBAKRE H—2BH o

The notes on pages 126 to 164 form part of these accounts.
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M5
Note 2011 2010
WA Income
KETEBHBNE B Government subvention for recurrent
activities 13 $153,748,000 $153,019,250
i 5 TN Services income 14 302,723,170 270,252,856
H At A Other income 15 12,206,139 11,518,941
$468,677,309 $434,791,047
i Expenditure
BE#HE Staff emoluments 16 (269,769,081) (259,498,303)
Bz Other expenses 19 (200,655,793) (173,471,106)
$(1,747,565) $1,821,638
HE () Transfer from/(to):
— HT5IEE MEBEER — Capital subvention fund to match
EEHNERE S with the related costs of
- RERBTEEESE — loss on disposal of fixed assets 12(a) 611,379 1,194,548
—FRNMEER — depreciation charge for the year 12(a) 18,570,001 18,463,854
— BNERFEZH — interest expenses on government loan 12(a) 926,912 1,467,107
-~ FRNBEBEEEREAR - Difference between fixed assets purchased
B ER and capital subvention for the year 12(a) (444,542) 3,318,147
HAWARENFEL Net surplus transfer to revenue
reserve 12(b) $17,916,185 $26,265,294

F126EF 164 BRI EBAKRE H—2BH o

The notes on pages 126 to 164 form part of these accounts.
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Bt &

Note 2011 2010
EETEH Operating activities
SERSMAFRE Net cash inflow from operations 21 $20,635,133 $7,042,058
BEBEBREH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (44,406) _
B BEEMER PRC Corporate Income Tax paid (18,151) (284,137)
EETHNEESRATE Net cash inflow from operating activities $20,572,576 $6,757,921
REEE Investing activities
EEE ), Interest received $671,449 $306,084

¥TIE = A DA L E BifE R Increase in fixed deposits with maturity
over 3 months at acquisition

Proceeds from matured fixed deposits

(51,342,739) (82,568,570)

= AR A EERFRIE

124

Fr{S sk I8 with maturity over 3 months at acquisition 43,741,424 =
B B B E & EFTS A Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 47,593 19,662
BABEEE Purchase of fixed assets (26,728,865) (18,594,383)
RETENHRLSHRHEFSA Net cash outflow from investing

activities $(33,611,138)  $(50,837,207)
RMEES Financing activities
RIEBABEEEE Government subvention for purchase

BWITE B of fixed assets $17,653,000  $18,668,000
BT ERE B Government loan subvention 13,025,043 13,025,401
BERFER Government loan repayment (13,025,043) (13,025,401)
BB E TS Government subvention on

KBS & B government loan interest 926,912 1,467,107
ENBFERFE Interest paid on government loan (926,912) (1,467,107)
B FEERAR ) E AN Capital contribution from non-controlling

shareholder 3,000,000 -
BIRDBELET &I AT1S RUIAR Proceeds from Resource Allocation

Exercise (“RAE”) 7,855,061 -
BMEMBNEAELSHKNFER Net cash inflow from financing activities $28,508,061 $18,668,000
ReRESZEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash

#in GRd) and cash equivalents $15,469,499  $(25,411,286)
RAA1ENEEREAEE Cash and cash equivalents

By at 1 April 122,170,223 147,499,697
EXRSHNTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 299,400 81,812
MN3A31ANEEREELE Cash and cash equivalents

EBY at 31 March 8 $137,939,122 $122,170,223

F126EF 164 AN EBAKEN—LH

The notes on pages 126 to 164 form part of these accounts.
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REEENR
Attributable to the Council
FEER
HizE EXEYe  WAEBRE BERE ek R ER REEE
Capital Non-
subvention Revenue Exchange controlling Total
Note fund reserve reserve Total interests reserves
72009545104  Balance at 1 April 2009
3 $203,903,036  $(5,424,006) $2,026,754  $200,505,784 $328,737  $200,834,521
REERH Surplus for the year - 24,430,241 - 24,430,241 180,415 24,610,656
At 2EKE Other comprehensive income - - 63,288 63,288 96,580 159,868
FAZANE Total comprehensive income - 24,430,241 63,288 24,493,529 276,995 24,770,524
BRENSFE Net movement in
capital subvention fund 12(a) 8,716,852 - - 8,716,852 - 8,716,852
REFRRER Capital contribution from
HER non-controlling shareholder - - - - 3,000,000 3,000,000
R2010£3831HK  Balance at 31 March 2010
3 $212,619,888  $19,006,235 $2,090,042  $233,716,165 $3,605,732  $237,321,897
RELENR
Attributable to the Council
FER
Mzt Ex8he WAEHRE BERE ag RRES LR
Capital Non-
subvention Revenue Exchange controlling Total
Note fund reserve reserve Total interests reserves
2010645184  Balance at 1 April 2010
e $212,619,888  $19,006,235 $2,090,042  $233,716,165 $3,605,732  $237,321,897
RNEERS /(EB)  Surplus/(deficit) for the year - 18,210,728 - 18,210,728 (525,318) 17,685,410
At 2EKE Other comprehensive income - - 91,642 91,642 13,300 104,942
FRAZANE Total comprehensive income - 18,210,728 91,642 18,302,370 (512,018) 17,790,352
BEABRS 32 Net movement in capital
subvention fund 12(a) 19,796,626 - - 19,796,626 - 19,796,626
R2011%3A31A#  Balance at 31 March 2011
wea $232,416,514  $37,216,963 $2,181,684  $271,815,161 $3,093,714  $274,908,875

F126EF 164 BRI EBAKRE H—2BH o

The notes on pages 126 to 164 form part of these accounts.
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R o
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LB ARREBENEES °

FTESHEE

(a) BHIEHA
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ERN(EAEMBREEL) (HREES
P E R ER (EBM B HREZER])
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BRAEENBHNEME S MEEREMK
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KAEENRZ I MEERT LRI P 5| B
REMRATE SR ERSBRE
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MEFTER K2 (2BIMEE26)

(b) fRE MREE

REE B RIZBCGEBLEENRERBIKEAH)
FATIERE - HE2011E3A31HILFE
MARERBERELEE N RMSHE A F
SEMEE N F (2EMES) #x o

1 Status of the Council
The Council is a subvented body corporate established in 1967
under the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance. Its registered
office and principal place of operations is HKPC Building, 78 Tat
Chee Avenue, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Council and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) are to promote increased productivity,
and the use of more efficient methods throughout Hong Kong’s
business sectors.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Council. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group and the Council for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these accounts.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 26).

(b) Basis of preparation of the accounts

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with section
17 of the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance. The
consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 March 2011,
comprise the Council and certain of its subsidiaries (see note 5)
and the Group’s interest in an associate.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the accounts

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the

accounts is the historical cost basis. The preparation of
accounts in conformity with HKFRSs requires management

to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect

the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenditure. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. 107
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting

rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated accounts from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
accounts. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains

but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests (previously known as minority interests)
represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Council, and in respect of which the Group

has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having

a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that

meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within reserves, separately from reserves
attributable to the Council. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income and expenditure account as an allocation of the total
surplus or deficit and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the Council.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as reserve transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated reserves to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with

a resulting gain or loss being recognised in the income and
expenditure account. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate (see note 2(d))
or jointly controlled entity.

In the Council’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(g)).

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Council
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.
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(d) Associates (Continued)
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An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated accounts under the equity method. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over

the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the associate’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2(g)). Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the associate and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income and expenditure account,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the associates’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal and constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in the income and
expenditure account.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised

in the income and expenditure account. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Council’s balance sheet, an investment in an associate is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(g)).
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. (see note 2(g))

BEEEMNITE K ETEENKRARE Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed
HEFISEME (F)  EHEe BER assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
ANAB&ETE - straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
BEREENRERKNE 504 Hong Kong Productivity Council 50 years
([EENRE]) Building (“HKPC Building”)
HEEFHR IR Leasehold improvements
—WR=E 104 — Office 10 years
— JERANE — Non-office 3 years

3E10%F

Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years
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(f)

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and
are recognised in income or expenditure account on the date of

retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exception:
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (Continued)

— Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the
fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by
the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
income or expenditure account in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the income or expenditure account
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to the income or
expenditure account in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease

term.

(g) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other

receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the

Group about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

131



8% B ff3E Notes to the Accounts
(LABH BB (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FBEENRER HKPC | £4 Annual Report 2010-2011

2 FESFHEE ®) 2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

132

- B AR A B M bR AR A Sk Lt A 75
B

- Bt W5 KERERRRLR
HEBABKARZENERE
B AR

- REETARENAREEEZH
REBEENKA o

WEEMEEREFE  EEETH
BEEIIRIAT 7R

ERMBARIRBEARNEKRE (B
RRERZERODRE (2HWE
2(d) M5 ' FrEREBBERNINERE
Bt 5E2(Q) (ii) 1 5% B TE 1% & &9 A Uz 3] 5
HEHEmSRBE—LER - AR
FE2(g)(ii) A LA & 5 7] 45 B 25 78 A {5
HFHEHRTEENE(L  BRENRE
BEEgEMD -

T DA 8 5 AR 7 5] BR A R LA BR SKOM L
RBEYSME  WIFRTEER
BEBREAEENRESRENR
NIBBERNE (ENGRIAGHE
ERGTENERNEX) rRBER
KEEREREZHENEZREFE - W0
WESHR ARSI BR 2 BB E R BRI
R R B - Bl UL E R 1B I e
I K AE B b 4% &Y 5 R RME - R A REH
AEERRET - ARFEBRENS
MEENARASRESRBERZA
RANREEUEERREBNEE
MBERBRERE

() EERE (&) (g9) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) REZSFE3IRE M H b FE W B KR {E () Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
(%) receivables (Continued)

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries and an associate (including
those recognised using the equity method (see note 2(d))), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment as a whole with its carrying

amount in accordance with note 2(g)(ii). The impairment

loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in

the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in

accordance with note 2(g)(ii).

For trade and other current receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed

for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.
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() EERE (&) (g9) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) REZSFE3IRE M H b FE W B KR {E () Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
(%) receivables (Continued)

(ii)
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(ii)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the income and
expenditure account. A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to identify indications that the fixed
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount

is estimated.

— Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing
value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in the income or
expenditure account if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value-in-use, if determinable.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to the income or
expenditure account in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(h) Consumables

)]

Consumables comprise tools and are stated at cost.

When consumables are consumed, the carrying amount of those
consumables is recognised as an expenditure in the period in

which the consumption occurs.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(g)), except where the receivables

are interest-free loans made to related parties without any

fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair

value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in the income or
expenditure account over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Accounts payable and accruals

U]

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

(m)Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment
or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy
by having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic

possibility of withdrawal.

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the
income and expenditure account except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in reserve, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in reserve,

respectively.
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2 FESFHEE ®) 2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n) FRGH (&)

(n) Income tax (Continued)
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Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets

also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart
from differences which arise on initial recognition of assets and
liabilities, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets

to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing

or amount when the Group or the Council has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and the income and expenditure,

if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is recognised in

the income or expenditure as follows:

(i)

Government subventions

Government subventions consist of revenue subventions for
recurrent activities and capital subventions for fixed asset
purchases and government loan and interest repayments.
Revenue subventions are recognised as income in the income
and expenditure account when there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

with them and that the subvention will be received. Capital
subventions are recognised as income to the extent of the
related expenditures incurred during the year.

Unspent subventions for recurrent activities and fixed assets
purchases arising in the financial year will be retained by
the Council as reserves up to a limit as agreed with the
Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“the Government”) (see note 12(g)). Amount in excess of
the limit will be returned to the Government in the following

financial year.

Income from provision of services
Income from provision of services is recognised when the

related services are rendered.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the income and expenditure account in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative

of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
the income or expenditure account as an integral part of the

aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

137



138

i B Fff5E Notes to the Accounts
(LA A Ef7) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FBEENRER HKPC | £4 Annual Report 2010-2011

2 TESTHER (&)

(p) M ATERE (48)
(v) SREEm
HEEmMWBAEERMRERTFS
o MAFEPEWKERMAAENRE
27 R\ e 2 0 s By e 2R

(q) iR E
FRMINERZ HIRZ S B B INE E = i
H o DUNE RBBEMNEREENABFRIE
EEAMINEERIBE - BEXABEKRS
BRB AR -

UESERA ENINEFEREERRAE
ERRX Z ARMINEER]ME -

EARIMEENFEREAR 5 HHINEE
RRENEXTRE[EY - BEREBEREA
BRIREE BmINEEXBESEE -
EENEN ZREERRELM2EIKE
koA REGEEFEET -

RERBRINEEH  EEEaTERL
HZBEBRIMNCE RN RFTELERE
BREFERERBNESA -

(r) fEERAE
EERAREEMEERSIRESIIX -
BEKE  BEXNEEFTEREET AN
BRARERGHHENEERRBRNE
ERARTIAB AL

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Income recognition (Continued)

(v) Sale of goods
Income is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods and the related

risks and rewards of ownership.

(g) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated

at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the

income and expenditure account.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the

foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Balance sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of an enterprise outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in reserve which
relate to that enterprise is reclassified from reserve to the income
and expenditure account when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

(r) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income and expenditure
account in the period in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s) Related parties

For the purposes of these accounts, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of
the Group, or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in
(i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.
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3 Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and two new Interpretations that are first

effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the

Council. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the

Group’s financial statements:

HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial
statements

Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)

The developments resulted in changes in accounting policy but none

of these changes in policy have a material impact on the current or

comparative periods, for the following reasons.

The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKFRS 3 and
HKAS 27, have not yet had a material effect on the Group’s
financial statements as these changes will first be effective

as and when the Group enters into a relevant transaction (for
example, a business combination or a disposal of a subsidiary)
and there is no requirement to restate the amounts recorded in
respect of previous such transactions.

The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in respect of
recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) and HKAS 27 (in
respect of allocation of losses to non-controlling interests in
excess of their equity interest) have had no material impact as
there is no requirement to restate amounts recorded in previous
periods and no such deferred tax assets or losses arose in the

current period.

The amendment introduced by the Improvements to HKFRSs
(2009) omnibus standard in respect of HKAS 17, Leases, did not
result in a change of classification of the Group’s leasehold land

interests in Hong Kong.



8% B ff3E Notes to the Accounts
(LA A BT (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FBEENRER HKPC | £4 Annual Report 2010-2011

4 EEEE 4 Fixed assets
(a) &= (a) The Group
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Leasehold

land and
HKPC Leasehold Furniture and
Building improvements equipment Total
RE: Cost:
20104818 At 1 April 2010 $267,784,136  $35,395,135 $137,992,645 $441,171,916
BRELEE Exchange adjustments - - 44,199 44,199
NE Additions - 5,659,188 21,069,677 26,728,865
BRE Disposals - (13,584,652) (25,260,777) (38,845,429)
201143 A31H At 31 March 2011 $267,784,136 $27,469,671 $133,845,744 $429,099,551
”””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””” 141

ZFHE - Accumulated depreciation:
201054818 At 1 April 2010 $105,643,543  $31,270,825 $103,857,218 $240,771,586
BREEE Exchange adjustments - - 35,672 35,672
FEHE Charge for the year 5,355,683 885,097 12,400,965 18,641,745
BE Written back on disposals - (13,331,700)  (24,845,733) (38,177,433)
20113 A31H At 31 March 2011 $110,999,226  $18,824,222  $91,448,122 $221,271,570
IREFE Net book value:
201143 A831H At 31 March 2011 $156,784,910 $8,645,449  $42,397,622 $207,827,981
RE: Cost:
7200944 A1H At 1 April 2009 $267,784,136 $33,841,807 $142,217,353 $443,843,386
BREEE Exchange adjustments - = 14,312 14,312
NE Additions - 2,290,355 16,304,028 18,594,383
RE Disposals — (737,117) (20,543,048) (21,280,165)
201083 H31H At 31 March 2010 $267,784,136  $35,395,135 $137,992,645 $441,171,916
REE - Accumulated depreciation:
20094818 At 1 April 2009 $100,287,860  $30,466,537 $111,331,332 $242,085,729
BEEE Exchange adjustments - - 10,240 10,240
FEHE Charge for the year 5,355,683 1,515,349 11,868,418 18,739,450
BE Written back on disposals - (711,061)  (19,352,772)  (20,063,833)
201063 H31H At 31 March 2010 $105,643,543  $31,270,825 $103,857,218 $240,771,586
IREFE Net book value:
201083 H31H At 31 March 2010 $162,140,593 $4,124,310  $34,135,427 $200,400,330
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b EELR (b) The Council
HEL#HR HERF
EENRE REIR RAREE HEE
Leasehold land
and HKPC Leasehold Furniture and
Building improvements equipment Total
R{E : Cost:
12010F4 A1H At 1 April 2010 $267,784,136 $35,395,135 $136,114,214 $439,293,485
INE Additions - 5,659,188 20,966,417 26,625,605
RE Disposals - (13,584,652) (24,943,068) (38,527,720)
201143 A31H At 31 March 2011 $267,784,136 $27,469,671 $132,137,563 $427,391,370
2E Accumulated
depreciation:
201064818 At 1 April 2010 $105,643,543 $31,270,825 $102,341,137 $239,255,505
FEHE Charge for the year 5,355,683 885,097 12,329,221 18,570,001
BRE Written back on
disposals - (13,331,700) (24,556,147) (37,887,847)
7201143 A31H At 31 March 2011 $110,999,226 $18,824,222 $90,114,211 $219,937,659
IREFE Net book value:
201183 A31H At 31 March 2011 $156,784,910 $8,645,449 $42,023,352 $207,453,711
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4 Fixed assets (Continued)

(b) The Council (Continued)

HEL#HR HERF
£ENKE REIRE RAREE e
Leasehold land
and HKPC Leasehold Furniture and
Building improvements equipment Total
R{E : Cost:
200944 81H At 1 April 2009 $267,784,136 $33,841,897 $140,438,555 $442,064,588
INE Additions - 2,290,355 16,174,175 18,464,530
RE Disposals - (737,117) (20,498,516) (21,235,633)
20103 A31H At 31 March 2010 $267,784,136 $35,395,135 $136,114,214 $439,293,485
ZiHE Accumulated
depreciation:
12009F4 A1H At 1 April 2009 $100,287,860 $30,466,537 $110,058,677 $240,813,074
FEHE Charge for the year 5,355,683 1,515,349 11,592,822 18,463,854
BE Written back on
disposals - (711,061) (19,310,362) (20,021,423)
201063 H31H At 31 March 2010 $105,643,543 $31,270,825 $102,341,137 $239,255,505
IREFE Net book value:
201083 A31H At 31 March 2010 $162,140,593 $4,124,310 $33,773,077 $200,037,980

(c) FiFE AMEE L R AEE D ABIHER
B YARABEELAFA -

5 MEARKRE

(c) The leasehold land and HKPC Building held for own use is

situated in Hong Kong and is held under a medium-term lease.

5 Investments in subsidiaries

£E: X¥ENR
The Group The Council
2011 2010 2011 2010
JE D Unlisted shares, at cost
BRRAMERTE $10,000 $10,000  $20,022,000  $20,022,000
S BB EE Less: Impairment loss - - (1,290,000) (1,289,999)
$10,000 $10,000  $18,732,000 $18,732,001
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5 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Details of the Group’s and the Council’s subsidiaries as at 31 March

B EEMT 2011 are as follows:
FERkLLE
Proportion of ownership interest
LR gafTk  REER H M
EEHY BRER BE EESR  WEAR
Place of Particulars of ~ Group’s 5B BE IEER
incorporation issued and effective held by held by Principal
2% Name and operations  paid up capital interest the Council subsidiaries activities
RETBHMER Automotive Parts and &% HEHKD 100% 100% - FERRE
FRRLBRARC! Accessory Systems R&D Hong Kong 10,0007 Research and
Centre Ltd. ®* development
HEHABER BMM Limited &R AHHKD 100% 100% - AEER
BRAR Hong Kong 2,0007T Building
management
EENRE (BR) HKPG Technology i AEHHKD 100% 100% - EENRENR
BRAR (Holdings) Company Limited ~ Hong Kong 10,0007 BAKRE@
Commercialisation
of patents and
project
deliverables
of HKPC
&7 (BK) BR2AF  Productivity (Holdings) & SEHHKD 100% 100% . BBER
Limited Hong Kong 20,000,0007 Investment holding
SEN (BM) w38 Productivity (Guangzhou) G BHEHKD 100% - 100% BRI RSEHIRE
ARARE Consulting Co. Ltd. * PRC 2,400,0007C Consultancy
and training
services
HES (R%) ##AR  Productivity (Dongguan) t ABHKD 100% - 100%  EBRA SR AR A
NGl Consulting Co. Ltd. # PRC 5,000,0007C Consultancy
and training
services
REN (RN #AAR  Productivity (Shenzhen) i BBHKD 100% - 100% B8R RaIRA
NI Consulting Co. Ltd. * PRC 1,610,0007T Consultancy
and training
services
RS Shenzhen SZ - HK ik ARBRMB  64.94% - 6494% ERRISEIRE
HENEM Productivity PRC 1,540,0007T Consultancy
BRARF Foundation and training
Co. Ltd.* services
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5 BARKRE (%)
SBREE BB A RR2011F3 A 31
BEVFEBWT : (8)

5 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the Group’s and the Council’s subsidiaries as at 31 March
2011 are as follows: (Continued)

FrERkL=
Proportion of ownership interest
EMELR BEfTR  REER H ]
EELY BRER #x EESR KWELF
Place of Particulars of ~ Group’s BB BE IEEER
incorporation issued and effective held by held by Principal
28 Name and operations  paid up capital interest the Council subsidiaries activities
RRBEENES Shenzhen SZ - HK il ARBRMB  64.94% - 100% S5 3IBRR
e e DS Productivity Foundation PRC 50,0007C Training services
Training Institute*
HERBRE ECO LED Lighting Technology ~ & HEHKD 51% - 51% RtREEHH
BRAF Limited Hong Kong 6,122,4007 “RERARS
Designing and
trading of LED
lighting systems

@ EXRKERRRARER MM - BB
TER  REERBUTEERER - Fit - &
RMB AR BEREL LB REELEENR
MESERAER - BRLEENRENER RN
BREERRIBEGERERTE - £EN
RR/BREEEENRNEARE SHER
MERRMBEELTERX -

# WIFAESHEEEBEAEZOMBAF o

WIAESHSAMEHAEZONMB QA
fR B P IRBR A FE E AR R WA BE D B
MHES A BERK4% 6% °

6 BMELQTRER

@ This subsidiary was incorporated for a specific purpose and was
managed independently and its operation is directly subvented by the
Government. Accordingly, the financial result of this subsidiary is not
included in the consolidated accounts of the Council as the Council does
not have control nor significant influence over the financial and operating
policies of the subsidiary. The financial result of the subsidiary not dealt
with in the consolidated accounts of the Council is not considered to be
material by the Council.

# The subsidiaries are not audited by KPMG.

The accounts of the subsidiaries not audited by KPMG reflect total
net assets and total income constituting approximately 4% and 6%
respectively of the related consolidated totals.

6 Interest in an associate

%
The Group
2011 2010

e R EE Share of net assets $1,412,059 $1,340,524
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6 Interest in an associate (Continued)
Details of the associate as at 31 March 2011 are as follows:

6 BMENTER (B
Bt A RIN20114E3 A3 HMEIBMT ¢

146

aE AR AL R =)0 PNEIEEZ AN
EEh 2 ERTRBEER iE=L: 1i:d
Place of Particulars Proportion of FEX#%
incorporation of issued and ownership Principal
4 Name and operations paid up capital interest held by activity
AR¥
RMB
BEERBEEN Chongging - Hong 3,000,000 40% BRI RIEHIARS
REFRLERAT Kong Productivity ~ PRC Consultancy and

Promotion Center
Company Limited

training services

S EARW IR ES G EHAETT

BEiZ

BENRNMBERBENT

The associate is not audited by KPMG.

Summary financial information on the associate:

BE =R Em WA Btk (EE)
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit/(Loss)
2011 2011
100% 100 per cent $3,919,241 $(389,093) $3,530,148 $200,803 $98,822
EEFHERMELZ  Group’s effective interest 1,567,696 (155,637) 1,412,059 80,321 39,529
2010 2010
100% 100 per cent $3,723,799  $(372,490) $3,351,309 $ - $(23,254)
EEEFR#EZ  Group’s effective interest 1,489,520 (148,996) 1,340,524 = (9,302)

7 YRR BARERES

7 Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits

£5 £ENR
The Group The Council
2011 2010 2011 2010
FE U AR =X Accounts receivable $15,202,698  $18,077,364  $14,125,726  $17,447,666
RERERE Allowance for doubtful debts (149,170) (50,000) (149,170) (50,000)
$15,053,528  $18,027,364  $13,976,556  $17,397,666
T FRIE - Prepayments,
R&MEA deposits and
FEMFRIE other receivables 28,148,346 8,798,500 27,499,595 5,103,006
JiE U FE 4R 1) 14 Amount due from
IR IR non-controlling shareholder - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
$43,201,874  $29,825,864  $41,476,151 $25,500,672
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7 BUHERN - BARERES (&)

FrA FEWERR « B RIERIZeHERR —
FRUE SR AL o FEUSEERAR R K
THEEER - AHEHR - LB R20105F6 H
2 EHU[E o

(a) FE U BR FORLE
JIE R BR TR YR (B B 18 LA ZE B BR A 8% © BRIE
SER BN DB EEEER A LM RE
GRIREBESEEPHEERER (25
M EE2(9)()) °

TR RERBERBERNE

7 Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits
(Continued)
All of the accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenditure within one
year. Amount due from non-controlling shareholder is unsecured,
interest free and has been fully settled in June 2010.

(a) Impairment of accounts receivable
Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against accounts receivable directly (see note

2(9)(0))-

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year is as follows:

147

EEREENR
The Group and the Council
2011 2010
MR4A81H At 1 April $50,000 $142,200
O RERRREEE Impairment loss recognised 99,170 -
EaimRkE £ Uncollectible amounts written off - (92,200)
M3H31H At 31 March $149,170 $50,000

MR2011463A318 » KERAENBRE A
#149,1707T (20104 : 50,0007T) H) fE
W RS ERIFEE BERIE - ELE ERIFT
ERARENEREREREBRAVRNESE
B BERECTHEBHEEEIREZSE
MR - FHItt - EENREBRRIKE
%149,1707t (20104 : 50,0007T) ° & &
WG S EB A T WEER -

(b) 36 £ J5i (B #Y P& WK AR X
JE U BR 7k & FE M R AR 19 0 % R B #EFH30
AAEH - ERALENBNEERRNE
— RSN K FE23(a) -

At 31 March 2011, the Group’s and the Council’s accounts
receivable of $149,170 (2010: $50,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that the receivables are not expected

to be recovered. Consequently, allowance for doubtful debts of
$149,170 (2010: $50,000) was recognised. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

(b) Accounts receivable that is not impaired
Accounts receivable is due within 30 days from the date of
billing. Further details on the Council’s credit policy are set out in
note 23(a).
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7 BUHERN - BARERES (&)

(b) 3 42 )5 {1 O B L B AR (480)

FEME R =k H B b 3% 3R 78 B R (B ) FE M AR X
KEBEEOREDHOT

7 Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits

(Continued)

(b) Accounts receivable that is not impaired (Continued)
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:
£5 *ELR
The Group The Council
2011 2010 2011 2010

E b=l Neither past due

nor impaired

Less than 1 month

BH—EAR

$10,363,055 $13,285,638 $9,726,779 $13,228,167

past due $2,639,328 $1,796,618 $2,569,780 $1,796,618

BE—Z=fH 1 to3 months past due 2,051,145 1,410,320 1,679,997 1,237,906
w0 HEI=1E A More than 3 months

PAE past due - 1,534,788 - 1,134,975

$4,690,473 $4,741,726 $4,249,777 $4,169,499

$15,053,528 $18,027,364 $13,976,556 $17,397,666

R ORE B R MR B 2 2 3T B I S B
REFLHENTRBLEFHR -

38 HI R U5 (O] 18 3F 488 R0 (B O 8 WK B A E )
PHZHEARIFEELBNBIEFA
B RIBAELR  ANEEREYES
REE MEEEERRZTERDAE
gum - Rt EEEREYEFEEZRZE
REERATIERERE - KRELEZFER
FrAEE RS -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not

hold any collateral over these balances.
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8 MITHERRRE

8 Cash at bank and in hand

£8 YENR
The Group The Council
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EA%EI#A  Fixed deposits with
JEBRE R maturity over 3 months
at acquisition $40,169,885 $32,568,570 $40,169,885 $32,568,570
|ITER Cash at bank $137,546,700 $121,780,009 $110,973,612 $110,434,208
HE Cash in hand 392,422 390,214 307,566 279,908
$137,939,122 $122,170,223 $111,281,178 $110,714,116
BEBERERNR Total cash at bank
RITF A and in hand in
REERE the balance sheets $178,109,007 $154,738,793 $151,451,063 $143,282,686

—EA%EI#A  Fixed deposits with

- ERES N maturity over 3 months
at acquisition (40,169,885) (32,568,570)
GAEREemESR  Cash and cash equivalents
A ERTTF AN in the consolidated
H& 4% cash flow statement $137,939,122 $122,170,223

M2011E3H31A B R A E 1 B AR
TERBEEFERERREITHRIESD G
23,415,2757L (20104 : 11,115,6697T) K&
154,4537T (20104F : 276,2817C) © & L 1%
A BE X 4B 7B 1R AR P B R AT AR B A HMNEE 2
HERRETT ©

9 ENRAKRETER

Cash at bank of the Group and the Council as at 31 March 2011
includes $23,415,275 (2010: $11,115,669) and $154,453 (2010:

$276,281) respectively placed with banks in the PRC, the remittance

of which is subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

9 Accounts payable and accruals

£E: X¥ENR
The Group The Council
2011 2010 2011 2010
P& AR 3X Trade payables $17,539,723  $15,706,047  $17,539,723  $15,706,047
TEUW AR X Receipts in advance 78,613,482 57,441,911 71,998,084 54,240,564
FREERE Provision for annual leave
(BsE) compensation (note) 22,604,441 24,214,858 22,579,668 24,111,120
JEETER & Accruals and
E b pE 3K other payables 35,813,033 37,504,868 35,091,831 36,786,367
$154,570,679 $134,867,684 $147,209,306 $130,844,098
FTEEWERR - EitE R REMEMNRETE All of the trade payables, accruals and other payables are expected

HR—FRNEE -

to be settled within one year.
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9 ENERARESER (&)

Accounts payable and accruals (Continued)

i Note:

FRBERE Provision for annual leave compensation
£H EEHE
The Group The Council
20104 811 At 1 April 2010 $24,214,858 $24,111,120
EEE RN Additional provision made 1,140,450 1,219,415
B ERRRE Provision utilised (2,750,867) (2,750,867)
20103 A31H At 31 March 2011 $22,604,441 $22,579,668

REFECERBERGD - REn—BFNEER
AZEELLERFR (BREFARARR
) BRERFRBEB/ERX —REBEFANE
BET - MEMESRER SR ZAFEM
B2 WA EREUE AR (G A # F R B O 3R
EHE - FEATRENERFESLINEE
B R RO SR B B E -

10 B FE R IZHIF B 2 R FRIA ~ FEAS I
ERRMEREYR KB D AR
b2
FEIE IR B B R B R - BB E A F)
TR N /AN P B R B RS R R - A
wE WAREREBRER -

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, staff members

who have completed a full year of services are entitled to take at
least seven days of leave (including Sundays and Public Holidays)
consecutively within one calendar year. Any staff member who leaves
his or her employment is entitled to annual leave compensation.
She/he is entitled to receive in cash the annual leave pay earned but
not utilised. The balance is dependent on the employees’ final salary
and annual leave days remaining at the balance sheet date.

10 Amount due to a non-controlled subsidiary,

amount due to an associate and amounts due
from/to subsidiaries

Amount due to a non-controlled subsidiary, amount due to an
associate and amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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11 BFERK 11 Government loan
EBENEENR The Group and the Council
2011 2010
PN Principal $249,425,000 $249,425,000
AR E Capitalised interest 18,385,117 18,385,117
$267,810,117 $267,810,117
NFFEDEESE Amounts repaid in prior years (254,784,714)  (241,759,313)
RFRERNBE Amount repaid in the current year (13,025,403)  (13,025,401)
$ - $13,025,408
BEERBEE]A Amount due within one year included
7 —F N E| B ERE under “current liabilities” - (13,025,403)
BEE[FRBEE] A Amount due more than one year included
B —F A FEIEAR 25 under “non-current liability” $ - 3 -
HEFEELBEEAE AN EZERE The loan, provided by the Government to fund the construction
BRI TN RERE AR A of the HKPC building, bears interest calculated on a daily basis at
BB o the best lending rates quoted by the note-issuing banks of Hong
Kong.
KE BERCFED20FE  FEIHES The principal and capitalised interest is repayable by twenty annual
BB —HEBH T R2010FE128EE - BEH instalments and the last instalment has been settled in December
HEENZTERBTEEEE - 2010. Funding for payment of the annual instalment is obtained by

an annual government subvention.
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125X EMERHFE 12 Capital subvention fund and reserves
=5 *¥ENR
The Group The Council
Note 2011 2010 2011 2010

EREE Capital subvention fund (@) $232,416,514 $212,619,888 $232,416,514 $212,619,888
W AEBFER  Revenue reserve (b) 37,216,963 19,006,235 39,697,382 21,781,197

$269,633,477 $231,626,123 $272,113,896 $234,401,085

HE Exchange reserve (c) 2,181,684 2,090,042
$271,815,161 $233,716,165
JEFERRAGEE  Non-controlling (d)
ey interests 3,093,714 3,605,732
$274,908,875 $237,321,897
(A EXEHE (a) Capital subvention fund
EEREEDRD The Group and the Council
2011 2010
R4 H1H At 1 April $212,619,888 $203,903,036
RIEBAETEEER Government subvention for
BN &8 purchase of fixed assets
— EEBAFAE - funds spent $17,653,000  $15,349,853
— ABAFE — funds unspent - 3,318,147
— BRDECETE] (2B (i) - RAE (note (ii)) 7,855,061 =
BEEERFERL Government subvention for
BT E B repayment of government loan
— K% (2HME11) - principal (see note 11) 13,025,403 13,025,401
—FE — interest 926,912 1,467,107
#E (F) KEERE Transfer from/(to) income and
VAR R 5138 B #Y expenditure account to match
HEE R with the related costs of
-~ REETEEERE — loss on disposal of fixed assets (611,379) (1,194,548)
—FENEER — depreciation charge for the year
(2EKI5E4(b)) (see note 4(b)) (18,570,001)  (18,463,854)
—BRNEZMEZ T - interest expenses on government loan (926,912) (1,467,107)
#y (%) kxiRE Transfer from/(to) income and
expenditure account $444,542 (3,318,147)

$19,796,626 $8,716,852

M3H31H At 31 March $232,416,514 $212,619,888
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128X EBhE K H#E (&)

(a) EXERE ()

=k

(i)

(i)

ERBEDHERRTEBBERTCEE  #
BBNER R RS2 L E N KERBUTE
ABERHEEAE - BEEENFTENUR
NEFEHEREEEMKR (ER) 1
RIEFEMESE -

BEBERFOERS RS BT EEH
rEBREBEENRBBAIFEEER
BEFERNEEEIINNBINEEER
R - 200911 A » BAIF R @A -
BIFE b M A E 7 Bt HMIEE RS iR
BB (B £1,41087m) © #FBWOT ¢

(@) 990&TT @ ARAEE N RF R —HEH
REARZEZR &

(o) 42087 ' MEEENBRERABREASE
ORI 5 BR 75 2 B o &L 2201143 531
BIEFERN  BBAERD KT 81%
K7,855,061 T LARE B 551 ©

12 Capital subvention fund and reserves (continued)

(a) Capital subvention fund (continued)
Notes:

(i) This fund was created for recording the cumulative effect of the
purchase of fixed assets, repayment of government loan and
interest accrued for the loan borrowed from the Government for the
construction of the HKPC Building, depreciation charges of fixed
assets and gain/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets in prior years.

(i) Under the Government’s RAE, the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau of the Government invites bids via Innovation and Technology
Commission (“ITC”) for additional recurrent resources on top of
the annual block grant. In November 2009, ITC informed that the
Government had granted two bids (in total of $14,100,000 RAE fund)
to the Council and the details were as follows:

(@) $9,900,000 for setting up a new electromagnetic compatibility
chamber in the Council; and

(b) $4,200,000 for upgrading the current reliability testing services of
the Council. During the year ended 31 March 2011, $7,855,061
of RAE fund was used for the purchase of equipment.

(b) WA & (b) Revenue reserve
£5 *ELR
The Group The Council
2011 2010 2011 2010
R4 H1H At 1 April $19,006,235 $(5,424,006) $21,781,197 $(4,484,097)
EHWTIRE Transfer from income and
expenditure account 18,210,728 24,430,241 17,916,185 26,265,294
R3A31H At 31 March $37,216,963 $19,006,235 $39,697,382 $21,781,197

WARBRERTRELEENRREENR
&t (BER) MEE -

This reserve was created for the purpose of recording the
Council’s and the Group’s accumulated surplus/(deficit).

(c) B H 1 (c) Exchange reserve
£H
The Group
2011 2010
R4 H1H At 1 April $2,090,042 $2,026,754
BmERBENBARKRE Exchange difference on translation of
MELZ=ZR accounts of PRC subsidiaries 91,642 63,288
M3A31H At 31 March $2,181,684 $2,090,042
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128X EBE R HE (&) 12 Capital subvention fund and reserves (continued)

(c) 2 E it (&)
BERERRBRERBRIIETRAME
HHPAERERE - WEIRRMEE2(0) A
SR HRREEIE ©

(c) Exchange reserve (continued)

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the accounts of operations outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(q).

(d) FFEZEHIMH RS (d) Non-controlling interests
%£E
The Group
2011 2010
W4A1H At 1 April $3,605,732 $328,737
REFEIER AR E R E AN Capital contribution from
non-controlling shareholder - 3,000,000
FEAL T B A R B E R Share of exchange reserve in a subsidiary 13,300 96,580
FERIE (BE)/ T8 Share of (loss)/profit for the year (525,318) 180,415
MR3A31H At 31 March $3,093,714 $3,605,732
(e) BEEBMNEEER (e) Annual block grant

AR IR BRI B2 AR BE ) R 7E200946 H 22 H 25
AT ZHEE RS ([B=ik]) £8
& EENRAABREFERNTEREE
ML SBERBIERRHEE - TH
MR - ZEEKFETEaREE
NEREBYREEMENSFEBRNTE
FEBHEEMN15% ° 2010/2011 6 & B BT
BE BB A% A1.714187T(2009/20104F
B 1.717187T) - £ENREIEEBTHE
NEFFATFE 2 HEAMENBTE
32D

() EXEE
KSEMAEN[EXR] BREAEDE R
RENMBEREY - RETSKEER
ERERARETRIEBMELENR Z4E

SEEREANTIEZRRERESERE
RREHBE N A R R B BE O A] RR 2R SE
NEIHMEE -

SEZEREENEAETERECHERR
EREENERGER - EENRREEM
P /B8 2 RIBE A 52 2 SN SR e AN ) B AN AR TE FIT
PR ©

In accordance with section 8 of the Memorandum of
Administrative Arrangement (“MAA”) dated 22 June 2009 signed
between the Government and the Council, the Council is allowed
to keep any savings from its annual block grant as reserves. At
any one point in time the level of accumulated savings from the
Council’s annual block grant shall not exceed 15% of its annual
block grant in the current financial year. The total block grant for
the year of 2010/2011 was $171.4 million (2009/2010: $171.7
million). The annual block grant from the Government in the
current and prior years has been fully expended by the Council
in accordance with the MAA.

(f) Capital management

The Group defines “capital” as including all components of
capital subvention fund and reserves. Trading balances that arise
as a result of trading transactions with other group companies
are not regarded by the Group as capital.

The Group’s primarily objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the
foreseeable future.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed
with due regard to the capital management practices of the
Group. Neither the Council nor its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.
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13U E B 13 Government subvention
EEREENR The Group and the Council
2011 2010
KEEBHE B Subvention for recurrent activities $153,748,000 $153,019,250
14 RFEWA 14 Services income
=8 E¥ENR
The Group The Council
2011 2010 2011 2010
R RIS Consultancy $254,397,797 $215,259,751 $249,448,290 $209,385,910
£ Training 22,638,797 29,855,017 21,012,213 28,786,388
Bl R Manufacturing support 23,409,585 24,603,798 23,409,585 24,603,798
SHETYNES  Publications and advertising 1,124,384 914,758 1,124,384 914,758
BE®KERE Exhibitions and study mission 9,281,809 8,082,896 7,728,698 6,562,002
$310,852,372 $278,716,220 $302,723,170 $270,252,856
15 H AUt A 150ther income
£E: X¥ENR
The Group The Council
2011 2010 2011 2010
HAe WA Rental income $8,918,124 $6,473,594 $9,088,266 $6,695,294
A B UA Interest income 671,449 306,084 623,769 258,417
Hih Others 2,274,073 1,359,500 2,494,104 4,565,230
$11,863,646 $8,139,178  $12,206,139  $11,518,941
16 B EHE 16 Staff emoluments
£E: X¥ENR
The Group The Council
2011 2010 2011 2010
e MOERA Salaries & allowances $225,975,843 $216,970,508 $223,963,509 $215,474,360
%0 B <& Gratuities 434,503 870,463 434,503 870,463
EEARBEKE  Directorate passages 432,808 447,117 432,808 447 117
HBET{E - lE&  Overtime, subsistence
K B bR and other allowances 484,359 568,944 484,359 568,944
B EEENREKE  Staff housing and furniture
p=Al allowances 9,376,458 8,813,425 9,376,458 8,813,425
1 B 208 28 Staff education allowances 1,976,427 1,648,941 1,976,427 1,648,941
RIRE st Retirement schemes contribution 27,120,102 25,761,227 27,107,807 25,761,227
BEEENEE Medical benefits scheme 5,993,210 5,913,826 5,993,210 5,913,826

$271,793,710

$260,994,451

$269,769,081

$259,498,303
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16 Staff emoluments (continued)
Notes:

16 R EHE (&)
it

(a) £ENBHEEEES S HA8%4,625,7267T
(20104F : ##4,221,7817T) - BEt AITEZ H
GEIE

(a) Temporary staff costs of the Group amounting to $4,625,726 (2010:
$4,221,781) has been charged to general and administrative expenses
under note 19.

(b) EHE & & X | & &5 /8 #09,748,7187T (2010
F 7 #9,446,7807T) & B #5,274,0747T
(20104 : #B#4,919,7157T) * E D Alst A&
EREENBHIEBABEZE (KFiFE19)

17 SREE A B
SARE IR A B B A EIR A IR S AT IR B
FH (e 28 BEWEMANLAESER)
BE

(b) Project staff costs amounting to $9,743,718 (2010: $9,446,780) and
$5,274,074 (2010: $4,919,715) have been charged to project related
expenses of the Group and the Council respectively under note 19.

17 Senior management’s remuneration
The aggregate remuneration (salaries, allowances, benefits in
kind and provident fund contributions) received by the senior
management for their services rendered to the Group are listed as
follows:

EEREENR
The Group and the Council
2011 2010

B E  BE Agnes Mak, Executive Director $1,284,516 $ =

ISKEE - EE Wilson Fung, Executive Director 814,492 3,024,016
oA 0 BlaaE (BRIEZEE ) Joseph Poon, Director (Technology Development) 2,214,253 364,205
%) - glias (RlEER) Stephen Lee, Director (Technology Development) - 1,726,245
RIKEE - BlEE (DEEE) Edmund Sung, Director (Business Consulting) 2,209,224 2,199,668
MIEE @ gl4aE (HEE55) Tony Lam, Director (Corporate Services) 2,761,417 1,668,558

$9,283,902 $8,982,692

18 Council members’ remuneration
During the year, the Chairman and members of the Council did not
receive any remuneration for their services rendered to the Council
(2010: $Nil).

18BEENREEEREZENHMH
RER - AENREFREFEREREY
L E R AR E ) B ER A AR 5 W BT 1] B
(2010%F : &) o

19 H#x 19 Other expenses
&8 EEIR
The Group The Council
2011 2010 2011 2010
— M RITHEH  General and administrative
expenses $36,347,548 $34,263,100 $33,129,792 $32,592,451
THH B Project related expenses 134,451,050 109,411,137 131,639,300 106,105,445
REREEE Loss on disposal of
igi=! fixed assets 620,403 1,196,670 611,379 1,194,548
e Depreciation 18,641,745 18,739,450 18,570,001 18,463,854
BITE =T 8 Interest expenses
Sann on government loan 926,912 1,467,107 926,912 1,467,107
Hih H Other expenses 15,660,165 13,468,538 15,778,409 13,647,701

$206,647,823

$178,546,002

$200,655,793

$173,471,106
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20 % 1H
() REWXIRE FIRBRES !

20 Taxation
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income and expenditure
account represents:

2011 2010
AEABIE — BENER Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
LAE [ R Under-provision in respect of prior years $22,203 $ =
AEABLIE — o Current tax - Overseas
FREMIA Provision for the year 18,151 157,893
$40,354 $157,893

BHREEN RERBERREEFE (RBKHF
5I) BeTIRA R HMAABEETIA - Filt
BABNEAEBNER

P T S B 28 AR 4 RS BRI -
HARE(EE AT SRR -

M B ARMHIALREREE DNEE
BITH R

(b) BB HEEE (BR), FENLE

The Council is not subject to any Hong Kong Profits Tax as the
Council has been granted exemption from all Hong Kong taxes
by the Inland Revenue Department under Section 87 of the Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for Hong Kong subsidiaries
has been made as they sustained losses for taxation purposes

during the year.

Taxation for PRC subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current
rates of taxation ruling in the relevant provinces.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting

AR REHWEE deficit/surplus at applicable tax rates:
2011 2010
PR (B51R), Zgk (Deficit)/surplus before taxation $(1,937,986) $324,893
HERAT R EREA Notional tax on (deficit)/surplus before
(E18) /BN ZEiia tax, calculated at applicable rate $(94,782) $(227,246)
AT HH R IEE Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 51,545 297,168
RIER AR A A HIEE B8 Tax effect of unused tax losses not
HIETE recognised 217,680 140,159
EFEE N BHIEEESN Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses
HERE utilised (156,292) (52,188)
EEEEEIR Under-provision in respect of prior years 22,203 =
BERBIEX Actual tax expense $40,354 $157,893
(c) EfIHE (c) Tax recoverable

HEEERBRMATROEANTIEF2011
FEMARNEENESHER

(d)EERBEEEHEES
& B »2011/M2010F3 8318 I & /8 F
ERNENELEHIBEEREE °

Tax recoverable in the consolidated balance sheet represents
provisional Profits Tax paid during the year ended 31 March
2011.

(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
The Group has no material deferred tax assets or liabilities
requiring recognition as at 31 March 2011 and 2010.
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A REREREBRME
FEBRBA (FR),/ BRELEFHNRS

21 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement
Reconciliation of (deficit)/surplus before taxation for the year to net

MAFEEH AR cash inflow from operating activities:
2011 2010

EHEEWERE RIER (Deficit)/Surplus before taxation dealt with in the

BELRT (B1B), A consolidated income and expenditure account $(1,937,986) $324,893
HEEm g E (Increase)/Decrease in consumables (30,700) 89,175
JEURBRR « TEfT FRIE & Increase in accounts receivable, prepayments

&e (3Bm) and deposits (16,376,010) (1,881,754)
FEIESIEHIN B A RIZE  Increase in amount due to a non-controlled

il subsidiary 16,349 297,478
RS RETER Increase/(Decrease) in accounts payable and

a0 GRd) accruals 19,702,995 (12,963,334)
FEWA Interest income (671,449) (306,084)
BEEETEEESE Loss on disposal of fixed assets 620,403 1,196,670
SENRBBEEEENE Depreciation on fixed assets of the Council 18,570,001 18,463,854
MEBARIBEEERTE Depreciation on fixed assets of subsidiaries 71,744 275,596
BT E A B3 Interest expenses on government loan 926,912 1,467,107
FE(EEEZ A T) (BEs),/ 58 Share of (profit)/loss of an associate (39,529) 9,302
ERER Exchange differences (217,597) 69,155
EEHERNFE Net cash inflow from operations $20,635,133 $7,042,058

2K EHERH 22 Operating lease arrangements
(a) ERAHEA (a) As lessee

MR201143 8318 » EBNEEHBIRE
AT i S A A8 8 R S A R SR FE S Y AR (K AR
EHREENT

At 31 March 2011, the Group and the Council had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:

£5 YXENR
The Group The Council
T REEY Land and buildings 2011 2010 2011 2010
E—FR Within 1 year $1,600,678 $1,670,946 $84,620 $211,944
F-F After 1 year but
FHEER within 5 years 273,698 1,414,881 - 24,600
$1,874,376 $3,085,827 $84,620 $236,544

AREE  REAWEERB P RERAELH
HEREZEYRE A A2,008,9617T (2010
£ :1,772,989) °

3

ELME—RNP BB —2RF  HBE
BEZEY ERMAGKOUENR
o REHEATEEREEE -

0

L

During the year, $2,008,961 (2010: $1,772,989) was recognised
as an expense in the consolidated income and expenditure
account in respect of leasing of land and buildings.

The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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22 REHELZH (/) 22 Operating lease arrangements (continued)

(b)EHEHBEA
M2011F3A318 KB R EE N BRE
AT U A A8 2 F & A AR SR FE UK Y AR (K AR
ERENT

(b) As lessor
At 31 March 2011, the Group and Council had future aggregate
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

£5 YENR
The Group The Council

T REEY Land and buildings 2011 2010 2011 2010

— R Within 1 year $910,176 $995,028 $910,176 $1,151,496
== After 1 year but

FRFNRN within 5 years 1,820,352 - 1,820,352 -

$2,730,528 $995,028 $2,730,528 $1,151,496

ELTEE RS AHMRE - 3B GREE The leases typically run for an initial period of two years, with an 159

BEH ERAAGKENENREE - &
FHEATESHEMEE -

23EFEREERAABEETE

option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None
of the leases includes contingent rentals.

23 Financial risk management and fair values

EEIENESEBBRERPSEAEE K Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
BE L - FXGINEFE K o 5 LR 2 IRR the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to
EENMBEBEHERRAMLEE - B8 these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices

T

(a) FEREMR
’EIE’MZTHFMI%XE}EH&@EM o EIE
BEGEEERR  YAFKBEEREER
REE -

AEENREFTHRERFEREFEN SR

*%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘i\%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁE’Jﬁ%@k
c BENERFEENH  AREL T

i‘ﬁifﬁﬁfiﬂ TRMBRERITERY

REER SELENEERRETIE
W HEREWERRAAREHERIRR
B123% (2010%F : 20%)

EERBNRSRAEEEEABRIITE
FIES MEER BRI AR EEERR HER
A58 °

R EEXEIRRE R EKRERESR
BMEEBEDH © FIRKIFET o

NN

used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with sound credit
ratings and the Group has exposure limit to any single financial
institution. Given their high credit ratings, the Group does not
expect any of these financial institutions will fail to meet their
obligations.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had a concentration of
credit risk as 23% (2010: 20%) of total accounts receivable was
due from the Group’s five largest customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet after
deducting any impairment allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set
out in note 7.
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BETEEMREERAABERE (&)

(b) REBE SR K
EENBERFPEERBELELR - U
BRESZARHRLSEE  ENAOMER
AEAFARMA BRI BEERAE -

TREIEEREENRNEREBERNE
FEHRBRENHE - WASHRIFTRR
e (BRERAAOFEFENF SN
Rk (FEHH L) RBRREERHRTT
ME) AREEREENRAETNRS

23 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to satisfy
its contractual and reasonably foreseeable obligations as they fall
due.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at
the balance sheet date of the Group and the Council’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet

BERZE

date) and the earliest date the Group and the Council can be
required to pay:

£H The Group
2011
SHRIE —ERE HBiB—F BBWE
RASE ReRELE REXR BLRME BEPREE
Balance Total More than More than
sheet  contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years
ERERR Accounts payable
LaEd ane| S $154,570,679 $154,570,679 $154,570,679 §$ -8 -
R FEZ A2 Amount due to
NG a non-controlled
A subsidiary 377,655 377,655 377,655 - -
[ERTEE & R A Amount due to
IE an associate 756,615 756,615 756,615 - -
$155,704,949 $155,704,949 $155,704,949 §$ - $ -
2010
ANAFE  —ER% BB BEWA
FHeE Den=gs RENR [EEYNGES BORAE
Balance Total More than More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years
FERTER R ]2 Accounts payable
st E R and accruals $134,867,684 $134,867,684 $134,867,684 $ - -
JERTFEZ 4 Amount due to
SIS a non-controlled
ZUE subsidiary 361,306 361,306 361,306 - -
[ERTEE & R A Amount due to
ZUE an associate 739,221 739,221 739,221 = =
HRER Government loan 13,025,403 14,045,893 14,045,893  $ - 8 =
$148,093,614 $150,014,104 $150,014,104 $ - $ -
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WBEFEEKREERAABERE (&) 23 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(b)yRBELERE (8) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)

*ELR The Council
2011

BRRITR —FR BB BBWF
REHEHE RERELE REX BLRME EBLREF
Balance Total More than More than
sheet  contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years

FEREBRE K Accounts payable
BT ER and accruals $147,209,306 $147,209,306 $147,209,306 - $ -

[ERHB AR Amount due
A to subsidiaries 11,450,283 11,450,283 11,450,283 - -
$158,659,589 $158,659,589 $158,659,589 - 8 -
2010

BRRFTER —FRN iR —F B F
FHeE RenELR BEKR BORME BOREF
Balance Total More than More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years

FERTER & Accounts payable
B &R and accruals $130,844,098 $130,844,098 $130,844,098 - $ -

ERHBAR Amount due
FA to subsidiaries 13,805,289 13,805,289 13,805,289 - -
HIFER Government loan 13,025,403 14,045,893 14,045,893 = =
$157,674,790 $158,695,280 $158,695,280 - $ =
(c) F==E bz (c) Interest rate risk
SENERETHBNER - FEHIINE The Group’s borrowing is advanced from the Government, as

BOMEI1 - £ENRBREALEE
AMERER ASEFOMEENTEA

(BEMEMN) HARNFEFEY -

disclosed in note 11 to the accounts. The Council considers that

there is no exposure to significant interest rate risk as the funding

for the payment of the annual instalment including the interest

payment, is obtained by an annual government subvention.
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BETEEMREERAABERE (&)

(d) Fh i [ B
EEARNET - ARY - AR RETE
BRI WA R KA EIEINE R o f
ETEHETHY  EERAETHETN
ERHIFENERTA © BHAARKE -
AERBTAENRARKATS - 1R
HIBE IR EIER - EESENERER
HEERBEEIMNE  UBREREFRBREE
WIS EZHIKTE -

(i) SMEEEBRREE
TRHEIEEN RREE B RRERA
SENREER NI - EERE
MEESREBEMARHNEBRR

23 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risks through certain income
and cost that are denominated in United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”), Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and Euro (“EUR”). As
the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between

the HKD and the USD to be insignificant. For income and
expenditure denominated in RMB, JPY and EUR, the Group
ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short-term imbalances.

(i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s and Council’s exposure
at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the Group’s functional currency.

£H The Group
NEBREE
Exposure to foreign currencies
2011 2010
EJH AR¥% A B e ARE = B
usb RMB JPY EUR usD RMB JPY EUR
MRS - Accounts receivable,

BERFERES prepayment and deposits - 1,360,799 - - - 1,107,644 = -
BOEARES Cash at bank and in hand 19,504 20,273,350 204,193 2,320 16,738 9,825,854 88,171 2,055
EREDRETER Accounts payable and accruals (23,974) (6,546,916)  (949,882) (127,245 (97,045) (3,666,419)  (321,230) (1,290)
FNEERERE Net exposure to currency risk (4,470) 15,087,233  (745,689)  (124,925) (80,307) 7,267,079  (233,059) 765
EEIR The Council

NEBEREE
Exposure to foreign currencies
2011 2010
En ARH A B e ARE A BT
usb RMB JPY EUR usD RMB JPY EUR
BIFRERE Cash at bank and in hand 19,504 658,635 204,193 2,320 16,738 278,128 88,171 2,085

ERERREGER Accounts payable and accruals

(23,974)  (252,856)  (049,882)  (127,245)  (97,045)  (307,656)  (321230)  (1,290)

FNEEREE Net exposure to currency risk

(4470) 405779  (745,689)  (124,925)  (80,307)  (29,528)  (233,059) 765
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23 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) s bR (48) (d) Foreign currency risk (continued)
(i) BRE DM (i) Sensitivity analysis

RRA201143 831 B B RAMIMNE T+
&,/ 8 E5% (2010 : 5%) @ & &
BHEEANEESREERNZALE
GFHEIWABHEEBINEE G AN
EEAENSRIAZINERR E
FTEEMAEREEFTENE
T FEEHE! is%lzlwfaﬁ%ﬁﬁuﬁ%
BRBEBTIEBRNEATE -

Assuming that the relevant foreign currencies had
strengthened/weakened by 5% (2010: 5%) at 31 March
2011 and the changes had been applied to each of the
group entities’ exposure to foreign exchange risk for financial
instruments denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate and in
existence at that date, with all other variables held constant,
the impact on the Group’s surplus for the year and total
reserves is not expected to be material.

ii%&ﬂ’\]%lﬁ’%ﬁﬁﬁﬁk?\ﬁ’\]%lﬁ@t

The group entities’ exposures to foreign currency risk, as

e EEYHEERERE N —FE stated above, represent management’s assessment of a
EE R FEAR R RE B Y S I B =R reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates during
BT EI TR RS - the period from the balance sheet date until the next annual
balance sheet date.
(e) 2REE (e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2011 and 2010.

FrA 4 & T A 201120103 H31H
MEEASHEEENABEIEEAEE -

24 FEE
M2011F3A31H ' skBEBEAEENRBE
BEMELHARTERNEAEABE
4,983,4827T (20104 : &) o

2BERBAYRTRS
BARR BERBENR SRR -
ENFRETATERMEBAIRS :

24 Contingent liability
At 31 March 2011, there was contingent liability in respect of a letter
of credit guaranteed from a bank for the purchases made by the
Council amounting to $4,983,482 (2010: $Nil).

25 Material related party transactions
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these accounts, the Group entered into the following material related
party transactions during the year:

SEE

(i) Council Membership of the Council is appointed by Chief
Executive of the Government. The Government has significant
influence over the Council and transactions between the

At R 5 BRANER E SRS R o E Council and the Government are considered to be related party

A EEHBE YL EKNET N5 E KB transactions and are identified separately in these accounts.

HR5 During the year, the Council has had the following material

related party transactions with the Government:

() EENREZEEZBRABRNTEREER
ZET -BAAHEENRBREEARE
N MEENBEBRZREHRZ 5 KRS

2011 2010
EEBREREFE Repayment of government loan and interest $13,952,315  $14,492,508
WS &R - AR : Receipt of government subvention used for:
— BEBABTEEE — purchase of fixed assets 17,653,000 18,668,000
— EERFEZ LA E — repayment of government loan and interest 13,952,315 14,492,508
— EEERE — recurrent activities 153,748,000 153,019,250
— BRDEEHE - RAE 7,855,061 =
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BEREBARS (5)

(NSEEMEABBHIRS :

25 Material related party transactions (continued)

(ii) Other material related party transactions of the
Group entered into during the year:

h=a
Note 2011 2010
EES=zE N =PNE] Service income earned from
W ER 9 Al 75 e A a non-controlled subsidiary (1) $21,012,449  $17,519,403
EESSE 2L ErNG Rental income received from
I ER B #8  Wg A a non-controlled subsidiary 2) 1,576,920 1,576,920

T

(1) R E 52 722 1l B /B8 22 ) M B ) AR 795 W A\ B By
RENREER  LRBEENBEA M

BEPRSZWOBIMERETE

(2) [EIFER 1R I P B 1 F U ER B & W A B
ERmGRER  YIRREENRER

tE PR SHEEUEHETE

26 EAEEBE2011E3831H LS
STEEMARERNIERT - FEA KR

BURs RN E

BEAKRBTIER  BESAMAGCHED
ZHEABE2011FI3ANB LG FEHK
£ INEBEAKRB RBMER] - #ER
K- GUE R T nERER AR

HIER o
EUT B
Rz EBBEH
SEHBER
(BAGIER]) F245 201151 A1H

fER] [ RAR T 3% % )

(BEMBEREER) K
B (20104F)

20107 A1H
201151 A1H

SELEEFEELEEE - HENNREL
REAHENTE - BB AL £EE
5 RMELER]  HEAMBEEKEN
REZGENPBAREZTEEEANTE -

Notes:

(1) Service income earned from a non-controlled subsidiary relates to
services provided and is based on similar terms as the Council’'s
transactions with other customers.

(2) Rental income received from a non-controlled subsidiary relates
to tenancy agreement terms and is based on similar terms as the
Council’s transactions with other customers.

26 Possible impact of amendments, new standards

and interpretations issued but not yet effective for
the year ended 31 March 2011

Up to the date of issue of these accounts, the HKICPA has issued
a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which
are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 March 2011
and which have not been adopted in these accounts. These include

the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Revised HKAS 24, Related party
disclosures

1 January 2011

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 1 July 2010 or

1 January 2011

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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